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Dear Fellow Shareholders, 

As you all would be aware, we began transforming 
the business model of our company in the midst of 
financial year 2018. With the scale of opportunities 
offered by the Gaming and Licensing industry, your 
company has taken a lot of efforts, over the last 12 
months, to build up the skill sets to capitalize on 
those. Our journey, in this direction, began with the 
launch of ChaseBid in September 2017, which is a 
unique reverse price bid auction platform, for web 
and handheld devices. This launch was very well 
received by our target audience and continues to do 
extremely well. We take pleasure in informing our 
shareholders that as per the latest Alexa ranking*, 
ChaseBid continues to rank much higher as compared 
to most of its peers in India, despite being the latest 
entrant in this space. Buoyed by this response, we 
took one step forward and extended the auction 
platform to national television audiences, by 
launching a live interactive show named “Aunty Boli 
Lagao Boli” during the year. Since then, your 
company has only accelerated its pace to gain its 
foothold in the fast-growing gaming and 
entertainment industry. The launch of Match 
International Poker League (Match IPL), Domestic 
Diva, Online Team Poker League (OTPL) etc., during 
the year, are some such initiatives that your company 
has taken to fast forward its growth and improve the 
quality of earnings of the company. Your company 
added another feather in its hat, during the year, by 
tying up with a leading national broadcaster for high 
end 3D animation content that your company would 
develop and control the IP. “Adventures of AliBaba” 
would go a long way in marking your company’s 
presence amongst leading quality animation content 
developers globally. 

We are determined to grow in this direction and 
continue to invest into building capabilities. We are 
upbeat looking at the progress and inherent 
developments in your company. With utmost 
satisfaction, I present to you the highlights of your 
company’s performance for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2018. 

Your company has a predominant presence in the 
following verticals:  

1. Gaming & Animation – A range of games
have been developed in-house and
outsourced. Your company’s high-quality 3D
animation content will soon be launched on
a leading GEC (general entertainment 
channel) 

2. Licensing & Technology – Through Viaan
Mobiles, your company has managed to 
create a brand which has found appeal with
international audiences in specific countries. 

During the year, your company established its 
presence in the Gaming and Animation sector, with 
strong focus on real money-based skill games and 
social games. 

Real Money based Skill games:  

We launched our game Chase- Bid, is a reverse price 
bid auction app. Under this mechanism, bidders with 
unique and lowest bids (at the time of auction 
closure) wins the product at the price at which he/she 
has bid for. We have +1mn strong user base since the 
launch in September ’17.  

We concluded our first season of “Aunty Boli Lagao 
Boli”, which was an instant hit with the audience, we 
had some sort comings in our back end which we 
have rectified and are all set to launch season-2 with 
greater focus on audience entertainment. 

We introduced MATCHIPL i.e Match Indian Poker 
league, the first skill based poker game of its kind, is a 
team sport incorporating regular texas Hold’em albeit 
typically with a pot-  limit pre-flop and no-limit post-
flop  Structure, in collaboration with International 
federation of Poker (IFP), Switzerland. The governing 
body for poker across the globe.  Online Poker is fast 
gaining acceptance, as a game of skill, in the country. 
This unique format has been widely appreciated and 
getting tremendous response from Poker community. 
The league is getting larger every season not only 
with the addition of new franchise owners but also 
with the prize money 

Social games: 

We launched “Shilpa Shetty- Domestic Diva”, is an 
addictive fun cooking game with lots of Recipes and 
Stories inside a casual game, where anyone can cook 
all kinds of dishes. It tests your time & resource 
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management skills. The game has received 
tremendous response worldwide with more than 8 
lacs download with an overall rating of 4.5 reflecting 
the acceptance of quality gaming experience offered 
by the company. 

Animation: 

The series “Adventures of Ali Baba”, is a 3D high end 
animation series crafted for the worldwide market. 
The adventures of Ali Baba is a children's TV series 
based on two orphaned boys, Ali and Baba, with 
special powers; born to protect the secrets of the 
dungeons under the care home.  

The company has already sold India rights, for Hindi 
and English, to a leading broadcaster. We would be 
launching the series this financial year. The company 
retains the IP for the franchise and the right for other 
regional languages in India, rights for other countries 
and other delivery platforms like OTT etc. 

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:  

The consolidated financial performance for the 12 
months ended March 31, 2018, is as follows: 

 Total revenue from operations at Rs. 26,855
Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018, as
against Rs. 13,469 Lakhs for the
corresponding previous period, supported
by increase in volumes and revenues

 EBIDTA at Rs. 2,854 Lakhs for the year
ended March 31, 2018, as against Rs. 1,111
Lakhs for the corresponding previous period

 PAT of Rs. 2,784 Lakhs for the year ended
March 31, 2018, as against Rs. 1,070 Lakhs
for the corresponding previous period

EPS for the year ended March 31, 2018 was Re. 2.6 for 
a face value of Rs. 1 per share 

FUTURE PLANS: 

Our passion for creating and developing incredible 
gaming, animation content & entertainment would 
take your company to greater heights going forward. 
Heading into 2019, we are only gaining momentum. 
All our efforts in gaming and animation segments 
have already passed the proof of concept stage and 
are in the take-off mode. 

India is steadily moving towards value driven 
consumption, with increased focus on local 
development. The key driver of market volume was 
proliferation of low cost smartphones amongst urban 
and rural population. Online gaming industry as per 
reports, is poised to be more than 1bn USD industry 
by 2021. The online gaming consumers market, 
characterized by large volumes, is rising fast in terms 
usage and monetization.    

Our focus remains on innovation and introducing 
more games that enable us to stay connected to 
customer and remain ahead of time. Our recent 
decision to introduce games like Game of Dot (G.O.D) 
and VOW, both of which received overwhelming 
response, are few such examples of the efforts taken 
by your company to reach the intended destination. 
We intend to capitalize on the growth opportunity 
offered in the gaming segment and we are working 
towards introducing 5-6 new games during the 
current financial year. 

We are quite kicked with the scale of opportunity 
available across various segment of our operations. 
All our efforts are intended to deliver value to our 
clients; to add value to our franchisees and business 
partners; give career & growth opportunities to our 
employees and grow profitability across businesses 
ultimately leading to maximization of shareholder 
value & return. 

I am grateful to the entire team of your company for 
working relentlessly in achieving the company’s goal. 
I also thank our customers, our shareholders and 
partners for supporting us and joining us on this, 
even more exciting, journey going forward. 

Ripu Sudan Kundra (Alias Raj Kundra) 
Chairman and Managing Director 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTOR 

Ripu Sudan Kundra (alias Raj Kundra) : Managing Director and chairman 

Shilpa Shetty Kundra  : Non-Executive Director Non- Independent Director 

Darshit Indravadan Shah : Executive Director/CFO 

Nandanadan Mishra  : Independent Director 

Mahinderkumar Dayanand Wadhwa : Independent Director 

Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria  : Independent Director (appointed on 31/08/2017) 

BOARD COMMITEES 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Nandanadan Mishra       : Chairman 
Mahinderkumar Wadhwa: Member 
Darshit Indravadan Shah    : Member 
Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria Member 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria Chairman 
Mahinderkumar Wadhwa  : Member 
Darshit Indravadan Shah : Member 
Nandanadan Mishra  : Member 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
Mahinderkumar Wadhwa: Chairman 
Nandanadan Mishra  : Member 
Darshit Indravadan Shah : Member 
Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria: Member 

COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

Kiran Jadhav(Company Secretary) 
B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke 
Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, 
Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069 

LISTED AT 

BSE Limited 

AUDITOR 

Sekhari Kanodia & Associates 

(Chartered Accountants) 

603A Brookhill Towers, 3rd Cross Rd, 

Lokhandwala Complex, Andheri (W), 

Mumbai -400053 

Tel No: 022-26324210/26366300 

E-Mail:sekhrico@rediffmail.com

Website: www.skaindia.in

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

No. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, Ground 

Floor, J R BorichaMarg, Opp. Kasturba Hospital, 

Lower Parel, Mumbai- 400011, Maharashtra 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke 
Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, 
Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069 
Tel No. 022-49179999 
Email ID: hindusthansafety@gmail.com. 
Website: www.v-ind.com 
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NOTICE 
Notice is hereby given that the 35thAnnual General Meeting of VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED  will be 
held at, on Tuesday 25th September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at Sri Guru Nanak Sachkhand Darbar, Dharam 
Sheel Community Hall, Block No.5/6, Room No.1, Mulund Colony, Opp. Youth Circle, Mulund (West), 
Mumbai - 400082, to transact the following business: 

Ordinary Business 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Profit &

Loss Account of the Company for the financial year ended on that date and the Reports of the
Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To declare a Final dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended March 31, 2018.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shilpa Shetty Kundra (DIN – 02130254), who retires by
rotation, and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 (1) and applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules, circulars, notifications made/issued thereunder,
including any amendments, modification, variation or re-enactment thereof, the appointment of
M/s. Sekhri Kanodia & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Mumbai, bearing Firm Membership
No. 109389W as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, which has been approved at the Annual
General Meeting held on 28th September, 2015 for a term of 5 years, i.e. till the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2020, be and is hereby ratified
and to fix their remuneration. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable and expedient for
giving effect to this resolution and/or otherwise considered by them to be in the best interest of
the Company including fixation of their remuneration and reimbursement of out of pocket
expenses incurred in connection hereto.”

Special Business 

5. Ratification of Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution
as Special Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 23, 42, 62 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956, wherever applicable
(including any statutory modifications or re- enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in
accordance with the existing Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
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Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as amended (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations”) and other Regulations/Guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) and other applicable laws, as may be applicable, and pursuant to BSE Notice No 
20180613-29 dated 13th June 2018 and subject to all necessary approvals, consents, ratification, 
permission and/or sanctions of the Government of India, Reserve Bank of India, Foreign 
Investment Promotion Board, SEBI and/or any other competent authorities and the enabling 
provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company and 
the Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges where the shares of 
the Company are listed and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or 
imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, consents, ratification permissions or 
sanctions and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company and subject to 
such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which expression shall include any Committee which the 
Board may constitute to exercise its powers including powers conferred by this Resolution), the 
consent and approval of the Company, consent & approval of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded to the Board and the Board be and is hereby authorized in its absolute 
discretion to ratify the 2810000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each for an utilization of funds 
aggregating to Rs. 2,81,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crore Eighty one lacs only) raised from the 
Preferential Issue in the financial year 2013-2014 other than those object mentioned in the EGM 
notice dated 06th June 2013 i.e for the growth and expansion of the business. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Company has utilized those funds only in the investments of 
unquoted shares & securities & majority of this investments has been liquidated without any 
profit or loss, thus the fund invested out of preferential issue did not generate any return on 
investment for the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the above resolution further Company has 
discloses the status of said funds as on 31.03.2018 as per the below mentioned table:- 

Particulars Amount utilized as on 31st March, 2018 

Amount Invested in unquoted 
securities 

2,81,00,000 

(A) Amount released from unquoted
securities

2,23,75,000 

(B) Balance amount invested in
unquoted securities

57,25,000 

Total (A+B) 2,81,00,000 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to decide and approve the 
other terms and conditions of the issue and also to vary, alter or modify any of the terms and 
conditions in the proposal as may be required by the agencies/authorities involved in such issues 
but subject to such conditions as the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)/Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (SEBI)/Financial Institutions/Investment Institutions and/or such other appropriate 
authority may impose and as agreed to by the Board.; 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above mentioned 
resolutions, the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the Company to take all actions 
and do all such deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, 
desirable or expedient and to resolve and settle all queries that may arise in relation to the issue, 
offer and allotment of any of the said Equity Shares, utilization of the issue proceeds and to do all 
acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto as the Board may in its 
absolute discretion deem fit, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of 
the Shareholders or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their 
approval thereto expressly by the authority of these resolutions.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of 
the powers herein conferred by these resolutions to any Director or Directors or to any 
Committee of Directors or to any Officer or Officers of the Company to give effect to the above 
mentioned  resolutions.” 

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director &CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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Notes: 

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote
on a poll on his behalf and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A person can
act as a proxy on behalf of not exceeding fifty Members and holding in the aggregate not
more than 10% of Total Paid-up Share Capital of the Company. Any Member holding more
than 10% of Total Paid-up Share Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as
proxy and in such case, the said person shall not act as proxy for any other person or
member. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting,
duly stamped.

2. Corporate Members are requested to send to the registered office of the Company, a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed.

4. Members are requested to bring their admission slip along with copy of the report and
accounts to Annual General Meeting.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice& Explanatory Statement would
be available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days, except Saturday/Sunday & Public Holidays, between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m.
up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

6. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed
from 19th September, 2018 to 25th September, 2018 (Both Days Inclusive) for the purpose of
the Annual General Meeting.

7. Members are requested to notify immediately any changes, if any, in their registered
addresses at an early date to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, quoting their folio
numbers/client ID/ DP ID in all correspondence, so as to enable the Company to address
any future communication at their correct address.

8. Members attending the meeting are requested to complete the enclosed attendance slip and
deliver the same at the entrance of the meeting Venue. 

9. Members desirous of seeking any information concerning the Accounts or operations of the
Company is requested to address their queries in writing to the Company at least seven days
prior to the Annual General Meeting so that the requested information can be made available
at the time of the meeting.

10. Members holding shares in physical forms are requested to consider converting their holding
to dematerialized form to eliminate all risk associated with physical shares and for ease in
portfolio management. Member can contact the Company or the Company’s Registrar and
Transfer Agent, Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, for assistance in this regard.
Members are requested to note that the Company’s shares are under compulsory demat
trading for all investors. Members are, therefore, requested to de-materialize their
shareholding to avoid inconvenience.

11. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the
order of names will be entitled to vote.
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12. Members who hold shares in physical form can nominate a person in respect of all the shares
held by them singly or jointly. Members holding shares in single name are advised, in their
own interest to avail of the nomination facility by filling form 2B. Members holding shares in
the dematerialized form may contact their depository Participant for recording nomination in
form may contact their depository Participant for recording nomination in respect of their
shares.

13. Members holding shares under multiple folios in identical order of names are requested to
consolidate their holdings into one folio.

14. Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering/updating their e-mail
addresses, in respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository
participants and in respect of old shares held in physical form with the Company’s Registrar
&Share Transfer Agent. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the
submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to
their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts.
Members holding Shares in physical form can submit their PAN along with form to the
Company/Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.(Annexure I)

15. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules
made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports & other communications through
electronic mode to those members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/
Depository Participants(s). As per provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rules there under, a document may be served on any member by sending it to him/her
by post or by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by delivering at his/her
office/home address or by such electronic mode as may be prescribed including by facsimile
telecommunication or to electronic mail address, which the member has provided to his/her
Depository Participants(s)/Company Share Transfer Agent from time to time for sending
communications, provided that a member may request for delivery of any document through
a particular mode, for which he/she shall pay such fees as may be determined by the
Company in its Annual General Meeting. For members who have not registered their email
address with the Company, the service of documents will be affected by other modes of
services as provided in Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules
thereunder. Printed copies of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip, Ballot
Paper and Proxy Form is being sent to all members in the permitted mode. 

16. Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Annual
Report for 2018 will also be available on the Company’s website www.v-ind.com for their
download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the
Company’s Registered Office for inspection during normal business hours on working days.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, free of cost. For any
communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s designated email
id: hindusthansafety@gmail.com.

17. Members can opt for one mode of voting i.e. either by physical ballot or through e-voting. If
Members opt for e-voting then do not vote by Physical Ballot or vice versa. However, in case
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Members cast their vote both by Physical Ballot and e-voting, then voting done through e-
voting shall prevail and voting done by Physical Ballot will be treated as invalid. 

18. In terms of relevant provisions of SEBI (LODR) 2015, in order to enable its members, who do
not have access to e-voting facility, to send their assent or dissent in writing in respect of the
Resolutions as set out in this Notice, a Ballot Form is attached. Members desiring to exercise
vote by Ballot are requested to carefully read the instructions printed in the form, to complete
the Ballot Form with assent (for) or dissent (against) and send it to Santoshkumar
Pandey(Alias S.K Pandey), Scrutinizer,  13,1st Floor, New Bansilal Building, Raja Bahadur
Mansion, 9-15, Homi Modi Street, Fort, Mumbai-400023, Tel.: 022-40025273,
Email:pandeysk2004@yahoo.co.inso as to reach him on or before Monday September 24,
2018 by 5.00 p.m. Any Ballot Form received after the said date shall be treated as if the reply
from the Members has not been received.

19. Members can request for a Ballot Form at Viaan Industries Limited, B-804, Hubtown Solaris,
8th Floor, N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, Andheri
(East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069  or they may also address their request through E-mail
to: hindusthansafety@gmail.com, Contact No.: 022- 49179999.

20. E-voting: In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to provide Members
facility to exercise their right to vote at the 35thAnnual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic
means and all the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services provided by
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

21. The E-voting period for all items of business contained in this Notice shall commence from
22ndSeptember, 2018 at 9.00 a.m. and will end on 24th September, 2018 at 5.00 p.m. During
this period equity shareholders of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form as on the cutoff date of September 18, 2018, may cast their vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the
vote on a resolution is cast by any Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their equity
shareholding in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on September 18, 2018.

22. Santoshkumar Pandey(Alias S.K Pandey), Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership
No. ACS 8546) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the E-voting process in a
fair and transparent manner (including the Ballot Form received from the members who do
not have access to the e-voting process) in a fair and transparent manner.

23. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the meeting, first count the
votes casted at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes casted through remote e-voting in
the presence of at least 2 witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not
later than 2 days of conclusion of the meeting and after scrutinizing such votes received shall
make a Scrutinizer’s report of the votes cast in favor or against or invalid votes in connection
with the resolution(s) mentioned in the Notice of the Meeting and submit the same forthwith
to the Chairman of the Company.

24. The Results of E-voting shall be declared at the AGM of the Company and the results along
with Scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the website of the Company thereafter and shall
also be communicated to the Stock Exchanges. The Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed,
if approved, on the date of AGM.

25. Voting through electronic means:
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I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the
Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and
regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations), the Company is
pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions
proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic
means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of
casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place
other than venue of the AGM) (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and
the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting
shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper. 

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on 22nd September, 2018 (9:00 am) and ends
on 24th September, 2018 (5:00 pm). During this period members’ of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off
date of 18thSeptember,2018, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-
voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:
A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs

are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)] :
i. Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your

Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user
ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the
password is an initial password.

ii. Launch internet browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

iii. Click on Shareholder –Login
iv. Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i)

above. Click Login.
v. Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new

password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or
combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential. 

vi. Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active
Voting Cycles.

vii. Select “EVEN” of “Viaan Industries Limited”
viii. Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.
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ix. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit”
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

x. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

xi. Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

xii. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are
required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to pandeysk2004@yahoo.co.in
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members
whose email IDs are not registered with the Company/Depository
Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :
i. Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip

for the AGM :

EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USER ID PASSWORD/PIN

ii. Please follow all steps from Serial No. (ii) To Serial No. (xii) Above to cast
vote.

VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Members and remote e-voting user manual for Members available at the Downloads
section ofwww.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your
existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of
the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

IX. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 18th September, 2018. 

X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the
Company after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e.
18stSeptember, 2018, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or Share Transfer Agent of the Company, i.e. Purva Sharegistry
(India) Private Limited.
However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can
use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free
no.: 1800-222-990. 

XI. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote
through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

XII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be
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entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through 
ballot paper. 

XIII. Santoshkumar Pandey(Alias S.K Pandey), Practicing Company Secretaries
(Membership No. ACS 8546) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to Scrutinize the
E-voting process in a fair and transparent manner (including the Ballot Form
received from the members who do not have access to the e-voting process) in a fair
and transparent manner.

XIV. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on
which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of
“Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast
their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XV. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first
count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting in the presence of  at least two witnesses not in the employment of
the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM,
a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to
the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the
same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

XVI. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the
website of the Company www.v-ind.com and on the website of NSDL immediately
after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in
writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited,
Mumbai.

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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RE – APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 

Details of the Director seeking Re-appointment in the forth coming Annual General Meeting in 
pursuance of Listing Regulations: 

Name of Director : Shilpa Shetty Kundra 

Date of Birth : 08-06-1975 

Date of Initial Appointment : 24-07-2015 

Expertise in specific functional areas: Entertainment, Hospitality, 
sports, realty, Jewellery, yoga, etc 

Qualifications: Under Graduate in Commerce Stream 

Other Listed Companies in which Directorship is held as on 
March 31, 2018 : 

Nil 

Chairman of Committees formed by Board of Other 
Companies on which he is a Director As on March 31, 2018: 

Nil 

Member of Committees formed by Board of other 
Companies on which she is a Director as on March 31, 2018: 

Nil 

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018 : 2,74,93,900 

Other: Not Applicable 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

15 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

The following explanatory statement pursuant to provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
sets out all material facts relating to the business items of the accompanying notice. 

ITEM NO. 5 

The Company had raised Rs. 2,81,00,000(Two Crore Eighty One Lakhs) by issuing and allotting 28,10,000 
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each on preferential basis on 22.07.2013 and objects mentioned in the EGM 
Notice was for the growth & expansion of the business. 

Further, funds raised under the preferential issue has been utilized for investment in unlisted shares. Out 
of this an amount of Rs. 223.75 Lacs (around 79.626% of the funds raised) has been sold off without any 
profit or loss. Thus the fund invested out of preferential issue did not generate any returns on investment 
for the Company. As on 31st March, 2018 status of said funds is as mentioned below:- 

Particulars Amount utilized as on 31st March, 2018 
Amount invested in unlisted shares 2,81,00,000 

(A) Amount realized on sale of investment 2,23,75,000 
(B) Balance investment held in unlisted shares 57,25,000 

Total 2,81,00,000 

The said preferential issue got listing & trading approval from CSE on 16.08.2013 The securities of the 
Company was listed & traded on BSE Limited on 18.02.2014. The present promoters took over the control 
of the management of the Company through Share Purchase Agreement dated 03.09.2014 & open offer 
process through SEBI (SAST) Regulations, 2011, was completed in February, 2015. The securities of the 
Company were suspended by BSE Limited on 24.12.2015, without any prior intimation for utilization of 
funds under the said preferential issues other than those specified by the shareholders resolution. The 
suspension was revoked on 01.04.2016 after completing the necessary documents/information to BSE 
Limited. However, on the said matter there were various emails/correspondences between the Company; 
SEBI & BSE Limited. None of the allottees nor any shareholders have objected to the utilization of funds 
under the said preferential issue till date, in fact original allotees of the said preferential issue have 
disposed their entire shareholding in 2014. 

The said matter was placed before the Disciplinary Action Committee of BSE Limited on 02nd August, 
2018 & they advised verbally the Company to comply with the requirements of BSE Notice No. 20180613-
29 dated 13th June, 2018. The Board and audit committee at its meeting held on 14th August, 2018 has 
approved the status of said funds as on 31.03.2018 and the same need to be ratified by the shareholders 
by passing Special Resolution. 
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None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5. 

By Order of the Board 

For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 

Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 

Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 

DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 14.08.2018 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Your Directors are pleased to present their Annual Report on the Business and operations of the 
Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2018. 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 is summarized below 
(Standalone); 

(Rupees in lakhs) 

The Company is into development of mobile based games application& trading activities in commodities; 
metals; electronics items & has business activities in India & abroad during 2017-18. The Company has 
wholly owned subsidiary Company in Dubai (UAE), which handles entire business activities of the 
Company, except India region & subsidiary Company has earned substantial revenue & profit during 
2017-18. The Company has earned net profit of Rs. 104.10 lacs on Standalone basis during the year 
compared to net profit of Rs. 6.33 lacs during 2017-18. The Company has earned net profit of Rs. 2783.32 
lacs on consolidation basis during the year compared to net profit of Rs. 1070.46 lacs during 2017-18. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT: 

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report, which gives a detailed account of state of affairs of 
Company operation forms part of this Annual Report. 

SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company is into single reportable segment only. 

Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017 
Sales 10401.91 4062.14 
Other Income 17.00 103.46 
Total Income 10418.91 4165.60 
Total Expenses 10281.69 4155.58 
Profit/(Loss) 137.22 10.02 
(-) Exceptional Items 0.00 0.00 
Profit/(Loss)Before Tax 137.22 10.02 
Tax 
(-) Current Tax 33.73 3.58 
(-) Deferred Tax (0.61) 0.11 
Net Profit After Tax 104.10 6.33 
(-) Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00 
Net Profit 104.10 6.33 
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DIVIDEND 

For the Financial Year 2017-18, your Directors have recommended a dividend of Re. 0.50 per equity share 
of the face value of Re. 1 each of the Company, i.e. 5 percent, payable to those shareholders whose names 
appear in the Register of Member as on the Book Closure Date. 

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

In terms of Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI LODR”), the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 14th August, 2018 has 
formulated and adopted ‘Dividend Distribution Policy’. The Dividend Distribution Policy is attached 
herewith and marked as Annexure 1 and is also available on the Company’s website at https://www.v-
ind.com 

COMPLIANCE 

The Compliance function of the Company is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and 
business units comply with regulatory and internal guidelines. The Compliance Department of the 
Company is continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring implementation of compliance functions in 
accordance with the directives issued by regulators, the Company’s Board of Directors and the 
Company’s Compliance Policy. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the 
Compliance Department and the status of compliance with regulatory/internal guidelines on a periodic 
basis. 

New Instructions/Guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities were disseminated across the 
Company to ensure that the business and functional units operate within the boundaries set by regulators 
and that compliance risks are suitably monitored and mitigated in course of their activities and processes.  

OPERATIONS / STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

The Company has shifted its registered office during the year within the postal limit of Mumbai City. The 
Company was more aggressive in launching various mobile based games application during the year – 
Sunny Gill & The Agents of Sniff; Domestic Diva by Shilpa Shetty Kundra (India first celebrity driven 
cooking theme game) etc, apart from other games which were launched during 2016-17. The Company 
has successfully completed Season 1 of Match Indian Poker League during November, 2017 & Season 2 
was launched during March, 2018. The Company has successfully completed first season of 13 episodes 
of first live TV Game show “Aunty Boli Lagao Boli” on Colors TV during September to December, 2017. 
The Company has held various Analyst/Investors meeting during the year in Mumbai & Singapore. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

The Company has a subsidiary Company in Dubai (UAE). A report highlighting performance of the 
subsidiaries as per the Companies Act, 2013, and it’s contribution to the overall performance of the 
Company is provided in the Consolidated Financial Statement The Company does not have any associate 
or joint venture or holding Company. The policy for determining material subsidiaries is available on the 
Company’s website athttp://www.v-ind.com. 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

19 

SHARE CAPITAL 

The Company has issued 1500000 convertible equity warrants on preferential basis to the promoters of 
the Company at an issue price of Rs. 42/- per warrant (including premium of Rs. 41/- per warrant) & 
these warrants has not been converted into equity as on 31st March, 2018. The Company has issued 
1465500 equity shares & 1465500 fully convertible debentures on preferential basis to HT Media Limited, 
the non-promoters of the Company at an issue price of Rs. 29/- per warrant (including premium of Rs. 
28/- per warrant) & these debentures has not been converted into equity as on 31st March, 2018. As at 31st 
March, 2018 the paid-up capital of the Company was Rs. 108117600/- consisting of 108117600 equity 
shares of Re.1/- per share. 

ACCEPTANCE OF FIXED DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits from general public within the purview of Section 73 
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review. 

RESERVES 

Rs 7.46 lakhs have been transferred to the Profit & Loss account on standalone basis & Rs. 4492.25 lakhs 
on consolidation basis. 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTY 

The policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with related party transactions 
as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company website. All related party transactions which 
were entered into during the year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business 
and did not attract provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and were also not material 
related party transactions under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. There are no 
materials transactions entered into with related parties, during the period under review, which may have 
had any potential conflict with the interests of the Company. Pursuant to Regulation 26(5) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, senior made periodical disclosures to the Board relating to all material 
financial and commercial transactions, where they had or were deemed to have had personal interest that 
might have been in potential conflict with the interest of the Company & same was nil. 

During the year under review, Company has entered into Related Party which requires disclosure under 
Section 134 (3) (h) of the Companies Act, 2013and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The 
policy on transaction with related party is disclosed in at board report. The Policy on materiality of 
related party transactions and on dealing with related party transactions as approved by the Board may 
be accessed on the Company’s website at the link http://www.v-ind.com 

LOANS, INVESTMENT AND GUARANTEES BY THE COMPANY 

There is no loan given, investment made, guarantee given or security provided by the Company to any 
entity under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Particulars of Investment made/loan given under 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in the financial statement. 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

20 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by 
the Company are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observations has been 
received from the Auditor of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.The Audit 
Committee of the Board reviews the internal control systems, the adequacy of internal audit function and 
significant internal audit findings with the management, Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors. 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3) (I) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

No material changes and commitments which could affect the Company financial position have occurred 
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report, except as disclosed 
elsewhere in this report. 

DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 Shilpa Shetty Kundra (DIN: 02130254), who retires 
by rotation and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. If re-appointed, his term would be in 
accordance with the policy for directors of the Company. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part D of Schedule II of SEBI LODR, 
evaluation of every Director’s performance was done by Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The 
performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, Committees thereof 
was carried out by Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the 
entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman of the Company was also carried out by Independent Directors, taking into account the views 

Name of Director : Shilpa Shetty Kundra 

Date of Birth : 08-06-1975 

Date of Initial Appointment : 24-07-2015 

Expertise in specific functional areas: Entertainment, Hospitality, 
sports, realty, Jewellery, Yoga etc 

Qualifications: Under Graduate in Commerce Stream 

Other Listed Companies in which Directorship is held as on 
March 31, 2018 : 

Nil 

Chairman of Committees formed by Board of Other 
Companies on which he is a Director As on March 31, 2018: 

Nil 

Member of Committees formed by Board of other 
Companies on which she is a Director as on March 31, 2018: 

Nil 

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2018 : 2,74,93,900 

Other: Not Applicable 
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of the Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors. Structured questionnaires were prepared in 
accordance with the SEBI Guidelines on Board Evaluation covering various aspects of the evaluation such 
as adequacy of the size and composition of the Board and Committee thereof with regard to skill, 
experience, independence, diversity, attendance and adequacy of time given by the Directors to discharge 
their duties, Corporate Governance practices, etc. were circulated to the Directors for the evaluation 
process. All Directors unanimously expressed that the evaluation outcome reflect the overall engagement 
of the Board and its Committees with the Company and its management and they are fully satisfied with 
the same. 

The Company has received declarations from each of the Independent Directors confirming that they 
meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section 6 of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI LODR. 

The details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors have been disclosed on website of 
the  Company  and is available at the link http://www.v-ind.com 

The following policies of the Company are attached herewith and marked as Annexure 2, Annexure 3 
and Annexure 4: 

1. Policy on appointment of Directors and Senior Management(Annexure 2)

2. Policy on Remuneration of Directors (Annexure 3) and

3. Policy on Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel and Employees (Annexure 4)

The Managing Director draws remuneration only from the Company and does not receive any 
remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiary company. 

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION POLICY 

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a 
Remuneration policy, providing criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence 
of a Director and a policy on remuneration for Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 
The detailed Remuneration policy is placed on the Company’s websitewww.v-ind.com. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The audited consolidated financial statement of the Company prepared in accordance with relevant 
Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India forms part of this 
Annual Report. The financial statements of Subsidiary companies under the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
attached along with the financial statements of the Company. The Company will provide the financial 
statements of subsidiaries upon receipt of a written request from any member of the Company interested 
in obtaining the same. The financial statement of subsidiaries will also be available for inspection at the 
Registered Office of your Company during working hours up to the date of the Annual General Meeting. 

NUMBER OF MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

During the year, six Board Meetings were convened and held, the details of which are given in the 
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 
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prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, the revised Secretarial Standards – 1 (SS-1) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India and SEBI LODR. All the Directors actively participated in the 
meetings and contributed valuable inputs on the matters brought before the Board of Directors from time 
to time. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the year under review Ripu Sudan Kundra (alias Raj Kundra) was re - designated as the 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. During the year under review Mr. Darshit Indravadan 
Shah was re-designated as the CFO/Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Shumaila Sernobathas 
resigned as Company Secretary of Company from 31st May, 2017 & Ms. Kiran Jadhav was appointed as 
Company Secretary of the Company on 27th September, 2017 and designated as "Key Managerial 
Personnel" of the Company pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

AUDITORS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, the 
current auditors of the Company, M/s. Sekhri Kanodia& Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, 
hold office up to the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. However, their 
appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company is subject to ratification by the members at every 
Annual General Meeting. As required under the provisions of Section 139(1) and 141 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Company has received a 
written consent and certificate from the above auditors whose appointment is proposed to be ratified, to 
the effect that they are eligible to continue as Statutory Auditor of the Company. Necessary resolution for 
ratification of appointment of the said Auditor is included in this Notice. 

AUDITORS REPORT 

The observations  and comments  furnished by the Auditors in their report read together  with the notes 
to Accounts are self- explanatory and hence do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT: 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company hereby 
confirms that: 

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures.

b. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018.
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c. The Directors have taken sufficient and proper care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting material fraud and other irregularities.

d. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis.
e. There are proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
f. That the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and

that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
g. Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and

maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors
and external consultants, including audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting by
the statutory auditors, and the reviews performed by management and the relevant board
committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2017-18.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES 
AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 

The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own performance, 
its committees and individual Directors. The result of the evaluation is satisfactory and adequate and 
meets the requirement of the Company. Information on the manner in which the annual evaluation has 
been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committee and individual Directors is 
given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, KMPs and employees as required under 
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure 8 to this Report. 
Details of employee remuneration as required under provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rules 5(2) & 5(3) of Companies (Appointment and  Remuneration  of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are available at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours up to 
the date of the Annual General Meeting and shall be made available to any shareholder on request. Such 
details are also available on your Company’s website at: http://www.v-ind.com/. 

DETAILS OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

Composition of Audit Committee of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors 
and Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance Committee of Directors, number of meetings held of each 
Committee during the financial year 2017-18  and  meetings  attended  by  each  member  of  the 
Committee as required under the Companies Act, 2013 are provided in Corporate Governance Report 
and forming part of the report. The recommendation by the Audit Committee as and when made to 
Board has been accepted by it. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has in place a process to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimization 
procedures. It has an appropriate risk management system in place for identification and assessment of 
risks, measures to mitigate them, and mechanisms for their proper and timely monitoring and reporting. 
Presently, Regulation 21 of the SEBI LODR with respect to Risk Management Committee is not applicable 
to your Company. The Management evaluated various risks and that there is no element of risk identified 
that may threaten the existence of the Company. 

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM 

The Company has put in place Whistle Blower Mechanism. The detailed mechanism is given in 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this report. The Company has established a vigil 
mechanism by adopting Whistle Blower Policy for stakeholders  including  directors and employees of 
the Company and their representative  bodies to report genuine concerns in the prescribed manner    to 
freely communicate their concerns / grievances about illegal or unethical practices in the Company, 
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s Code or Policies. The vigil mechanism is 
overseen by the Audit Committee and provides adequate safeguards against victimisation of 
stakeholders who use such mechanism. It provides a mechanism for stakeholders to approach the 
Chairman of Audit Committee. 
During the year, no person was denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee or to the 
Chairman of the Company or to the Corporate Governance Cell. The Whistle Blower Policy of the 
Company is available     at web link http://www.v-ind.com 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a separate section on Corporate Governance forms part 
of the Annual Report. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director of the Company is 
contained in this Annual Report. The Managing Director and CFO have certified to the Board with regard 
to the financial statements and other matters as required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR), 
Regulations, 2015. 

Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary of the Company regarding compliance of conditions of 
Corporate Governance is annexed to this Report. 

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S CERTIFICATE 

A Certificate from the Managing Director in respect of the Financial Statements forms part of the Annual 
Report. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONS AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

The information relating to the conservation of energy, technology absorption foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo under provisions of 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company, 
considering the nature of its business activities. Further the Company has not earned nor spends foreign 
exchange during the year under review. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board has appointed M/s. Santoshkumar. 
K. Pandey Practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company   for the
financial year(s) commencing on and from 01st April, 2017. The Secretarial Audit report for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2018, is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure 5 to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014, the extract of annual return is annexed herewith and 
forming part of the report. (Annexure – 6) 

GENERAL 
• The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

• No fraud has been reported during the audit conducted by the Statutory Auditors,
Secretarial Auditors and Cost Auditors of the Company.

• During the year under review, no revision was made in the previous financial statement of
the Company. 

• During the year ended on 31st March, 2018, there were no cases filed / reported pursuant to
the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013.

• No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is not 
applicable to the Company as the Net Profit of the Company is below the threshold limit prescribed by 
the Companies Act, 2013. 
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2018 have been disclosed as per 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

A copy of audited financial statements of the said Companies will be made available to the members of 
the Company, seeking such information at any point of time.  A cash flow statement for the year 2017-
2018 is attached to the Balance Sheet. A physical copy of the same will be made available to any 
shareholders on request.  

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Certain statements in the Directors’ Report describing the Company’s objectives,  projections,  estimates, 
expectations or predictions may be forward-looking statements within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Yours Directors take this opportunity  to thank the Financial Institutions, Banks, Business Associates, 
Central and  State  Government  authorities,  Regulatory authorities,  Stock Exchanges and all the various 
stakeholders  for their continued co-operation  and support  to the Company and look forward to their 
continued support  in future. 

We very warmly thank all of our employees for their contribution to your Company’s performance. We 
applaud them for their superior levels of competence, dedication and commitment to your Company. 

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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Annexure 1 
Dividend Distribution Policy 

The Dividend Distribution Policy (“the policy”) establishes the principles to ascertain amounts that can 
be distributed to equity shareholders as dividend by the Company as well as to enable the Company 
strike a balance between pay-out and retained earnings, in order to address future needs of the Company. 
The policy shall come into force for accounting periods beginning from 01st April, 2017. 

Dividend would continue to be declared on per share basis on the Ordinary Equity Shares of the 
Company having face value of Re. 1 each at present. The Company currently has not issued any other 
class of shares. Therefore, dividend declared will be distributed amongst all shareholders, based on their 
shareholding on the record date. 

Dividends will generally be recommended by the Board once a year, after the announcement of the full 
year results and before the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders, out of the profits of the 
Company for current year or out of profits of the Company for any previous financial years or out of 
both, as may be permitted under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 

In the event of inadequacy or absence of profits in any year, the Board may recommend to declare 
dividend out of the accumulated profits earned by the Company in any previous financial years and 
transferred to free reserves, provided such declaration of dividend shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder. 

The Board may also declare interim dividend as may be permitted by the Act. 

The Company has a consistent dividend policy that balances the objectives of appropriately rewarding 
shareholders through dividends and to support the future growth. 

As per the provisions of the applicable law, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based on 
available financial resources, investment requirements and taking into account optimal shareholder 
return. Within these parameters, the Company would endeavor to maintain a total dividend pay-out 
(including dividend distribution tax) ratio in the range of 10% to 60% of the annual standalone Profits 
after Tax (PAT) of the Company. 

While determining the nature and quantum of the dividend payout, including amending the suggested 
payout range as above, the Board would take into account the following factors: 

- Internal Factors

1. Profitable growth of the Company and specifically, profits earned during the financial year as
compared with: 

A. Previous years and
B. Internal budgets

2. Cash flow position of the Company, 
3. Accumulated reserves,
4. Earnings stability
5. Future cash requirements for organic growth/ expansion and/or for inorganic growth, 
6. Brand acquisitions
7. Current and future leverage and, under exceptional circumstances, the amount of contingent

liabilities,
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8. Deployment of funds in short term marketable investments,
9. Long term investments
10. Capital expenditure(s), and
11. The ratio of debt to equity (at net debt and gross debt level).

-External Factors:

1. Business cycles,
2. Economic environment,
3. Cost of external financing,
4. Applicable taxes including tax on dividend,
5. Industry outlook for the future years,
6. Inflation rate, and
7. Changes in the Government policies, industry specific rulings & regulatory provisions.

Apart from the above, the Board also sense of shareholders’ expectations while determining the rate of 
dividend. The Board may additionally recommend special dividend in special circumstances. 

The Board may consider not declaring dividend or may recommend a lower payout for a given financial 
year, after analyzing the prospective opportunities and threats or in the event of challenging 
circumstances such as regulatory and financial environment. In such an event, the Board will provide 
rationale in the Annual Report. 

The retained earnings of the Company may be used in any of the following ways: 
1. Capital expenditure for working capital.
2. Organic and/or inorganic growth
3. Investment in new business(es) and/or additional investment in existing business(es),
4. Declaration of dividend
5. Capitalization of shares,
6. Buy back of shares,
7. General corporate purposes, including contingencies,
8. Correcting the capital structure,
9. Any other permitted usage as per the Companies Act, 2013.

This policy may be reviewed periodically by the Board. Any changes or revisions to the policy will be 
communicated to shareholders in a timely manner. 

The policy will be available on the Company’s website  www.v-ind.com 

For and behalf of the Board 
Viaan Industries Limited 
SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Managing Director/Chairman 
DIN: 01785303 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:14-08-2018 
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ANNEXURE 2 
POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

DEFINITIONS 
The definitions of some of the key terms used in this Policy are given below. 
“Board” means Board of Directors of the Company. 
“Company” means Viaan Industries Limited. 
“Committee(s)” means Committees of the Board for the time being in force. 
“Employee” means employee of the Company whether employed in India or outside India including 
employees in the Senior Management Team of the Company. 
“HR’ means the Human Resource department of the Company. 
“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) refers to key managerial personnel as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013 and includes: 

(i) Managing Director (MD), or Chief Executive Officer (CEO); or Manager; or Whole time
Director (WTD); 

(ii) Chief Financial Officer (CFO); and
(iii) Company Secretary (CS).

“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” (NRC) means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
Board of Directors of the Company for the time being in force. 
“Senior Management” means personnel of the Company who are members of its Core Management 
Team / Executive Council excluding Board of Directors comprising of all members of management one 
level below the executive directors including the functional heads. 

I. APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

The NRC reviews and assesses Board composition and recommends the appointment of new
Directors. In evaluating the suitability of individual Board member, the NRC shall take into
account the following criteria regarding qualifications, positive attributes and also
independence of director when Independent Director (ID) is to be appointed:

1. All Board appointments will be based on merit, in the context of the skills, experience,
diversity, and knowledge, for the Board as a whole to be effective

2. Ability of the candidates to devote sufficient time and attention to his / her professional
obligations as Director for informed and balanced decision making.

3. Adherence to the applicable Code of Conduct and highest level of Corporate Governance
in letter and in spirit by the Directors

Based on recommendation of the NRC, the Board will evaluate the candidate(s) and decide 
on the selection of the appropriate member. The Board through the Chairman or the 
Managing Director & CEO will interact with the new member to obtain his/her consent for 
joining the Board. Upon receipt of the consent, the new Director will be co-opted by the 
Board in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made thereunder. 

II. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS:

If a Director is attracted with any disqualification as mentioned in any of the applicable Act,
rules and regulations thereunder or due to non-adherence to the applicable policies of the
Company, the NRC may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal
of the Director subject to the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions.

III. SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
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The NRC shall identify persons based on merit, experience and knowledge who may be 
appointed in senior management team. 
Senior Management personnel are appointed or promoted and removed/relieved with the 
authority of Managing Director & CEO based on the business need and the suitability of the 
candidate. The details of the appointment made and the personnel removed one level below 
the Key Managerial Personnel during a quarter shall be presented to the Board. 

For and behalf of the Board 
Viaan Industries Limited 
SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Managing Director/CEO 
DIN: 01785303 

Place:Mumbai 
 Date:14-08-2018 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

31 

ANNEXURE 3 
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS 

PURPOSE 

This Policy sets out the approach to Compensation of Directors in Viaan Industries Limited. 

POLICY STATEMENT 
We have a well-defined Compensation policy for Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. The 
overall compensation philosophy guides us to focus on enhancing the value of the Company by 
attracting and retaining Directors for achieving objectives of the Company. 

In order to effectively implement this, we have built our Compensation structure by a regular annual 
benchmarking over the years with relevant players across the industry we operate in. 

NON-EXECUTIVE INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) shall decide the basis for determining the 
compensation, both Fixed and variable, to the Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, 
whether as commission or otherwise. The NRC shall take into consideration various factors such as 
director’s participation in Board and Committee meetings during the year, other responsibilities 
undertaken, such as membership or Chairmanship of committees, time spent in carrying out their duties, 
role      and functions as envisaged in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Part D of Schedule II of 
the SEBI LODR with Stock Exchanges and such other factors as the NRC may consider deem fit for 
determining the compensation. The Board shall determine the compensation to Non-Executive Directors 
within the overall limits specified in the Shareholders resolution. 

MANAGING DIRECTOR & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (MD & CEO) AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Remuneration of the MD & CEO and Executive Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy 
and guiding principle of     the Company. While considering the appointment and remuneration of 
Managing Director and Executive Directors, the NRC shall consider the industry benchmarks, merit and 
seniority of the person and shall ensure that the remuneration proposed to be paid is commensurate with 
the remuneration packages paid to similar senior level counterpart(s) in other companies. The policy aims 
at   a balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the company and its goals. 

The remuneration to the MD & CEO shall be recommended by NRC to the Board. The remuneration 
consists of both fixed compensation and variable compensation and shall be paid as salary, commission, 
performance bonus, stock options (where applicable), perquisites and fringe benefits as per the policy of 
the Company from time to time and as approved by the Board and within the overall limits specified in 
the Shareholders resolution. While the fixed compensation is determined at the time of appointment 
which is also subject to annual review based on performance and responsibilities and the variable 
compensation will be determined annually by the NRC based on the performance of MD & CEO. 

The term of office and remuneration of MD & CEO is subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, 
shareholders, and Central Government, as may be required and within the statutory limits laid down in 
this regard from time to time. 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay, 
subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its MD & CEO in accordance with the provisions of 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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If a MD & CEO draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sum in excess 
of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central 
Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sum to the Company and until such sum is 
refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum 
refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 

Remuneration for MD & CEO is designed subject to the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 
to remunerate him / her fairly and responsibly. The remuneration to the MD & CEO comprises of salary, 
perquisites and benefits as per policy of the Company and performance based incentive apart from 
retirement benefits like P.F., Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment, etc. as per Rules of the 
Company. Salary is paid within the range approved by the Shareholders. Increments are effective 
annually, as recommended / approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee / Board. The 
MD & CEO is entitled for grant of Stock Options as per the approved Stock Options Schemes of the 
Company from time to time. 

DIRECTORS 

The Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer is an executive of the Company and draws 
remuneration from the Company. The Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors receive 
sitting fees for attending the meeting of the Board and the Committees thereof and meeting of 
Independent Directors, as fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time subject to statutory 
provisions. The Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors would be entitled to the 
remuneration under the Companies Act, 2013. A Non-Executive Non-Independent Director who receives 
remuneration from the holding company or any other group company is not paid any sitting fees or any 
remuneration. In addition to the above, the Directors are entitled for reimbursement of expenses incurred 
in discharge of their duties. 

The Company may also grant Stock Options to the eligible employees and Directors (other than 
Independent Directors) in accordance with the ESOP Schemes of the Company from time to time and 
subject to the compliance of the applicable statutes and regulations. 

DISCLOSURES 

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company’s Board of Directors, Managing 
Director and Executive Directors and KMP/senior management personnel may be disclosed in the 
Board’s report and the Company’s annual report / website as per statutory requirements in this regard. 

For and behalf of the Board 

SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Managing Director/CEO 
DIN: 01785303 

Place:Mumbai 
Date: 14-08-2018 
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ANNEXURE 4 
POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES 

· Senior Management shall mean and include the following:

- Members of Executive Management; and
- KMPs (other than whole-time director).

· The key components of remuneration package of the Senior Management and other employees of the
Company shall comprise of basic salary, dearness allowance, house rent allowance, transport
allowance, ex-gratia, performance bonus, contribution to provident fund and superannuation fund,
premium on medical insurance and personal accident insurance, gratuity, leave travel allowance,
leave encashment, housing/ other loans at concessional rate etc, as applicable and linked to their
grade. They may also be eligible for stock options as per the scheme framed/ to be framed by the
Company, from time to time.

· The remuneration, performance appraisal and rewards to Senior Management and other employees,
shall be in line with the stated objectives.

· The annual increments for the Senior Management and KMP (other than Executive Directors) and
other employees shall be linked to their overall performance and as decided by the CEO and
Executive Director in consultation with their reporting managers and Human Resources Department.

· Employees must conduct themselves to ensure that no breach of Code of Conduct, Viaan Industries
Limited ,Share Dealing Code, Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) and all other relevant and
applicable Codes are committed. Any such breach will have a direct bearing on their performance
appraisal and rewards and shall also attract appropriate disciplinary action.

For and behalf of the Board 

SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Managing Director/CEO 
DIN: 01785303 

Place:Mumbai 
Date:14-08-2018 
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TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

FORM AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 

Details of Contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year end 31stMarch, 
2018, which were not at arm’s length basis. 

Details of Contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

Name of the Party Relations Transactions Amount 

1. Nandanandan
Mishra

Independent 
Director 

Board Sitting Fees  Rs.  150,000/- 

2. Pradeep Shah Independent 
Director 

Board Sitting Fees  Rs.   30,000/- 

3. Mahinder
Wadhwa

Independent 
Director 

Board Sitting Fees  Rs. 150,000/- 

4. Satyendra
Mohanlal Sarupria

Independent 
Director 

Board Sitting fees  Rs.       50,000/- 

5. Ripu Sudan
Kundra

Director & CEO 

Remuneration  Rs. 60,00,000/- 
Reimbursement  Rs. 30,03,315/- 

Loan Received 
during the year 

 Rs. 20,00,000/- 

Loan Repaid 
during the year 

 Rs. 20,00,000/- 

Advance for 
Expenses 

 Rs.   4,72,307/- 

Interest Paid  Rs.     10,762/- 

6. Darshit Shah Director & CFO 
Remuneration  Rs. 21,00,000/- 
Reimbursement  Rs. 18,37,900/- 

. Shilpa Shetty 
Kundra 

Director 
Loan Received 
during the year 

 Rs. 6,00,000/- 
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Loan Repaid 
during the year 

 Rs.1,43,50,000/- 

Interest paid  Rs.     1,83,634/- 
Reimbursement  Rs.  38,89,677/- 

8. Satyug Gold
Pvt.Ltd.

Common Director 
Purchases  Rs.  30,000/- 
Sales  Rs.  59,200/- 

10. Cinemation Media
works Private limited

Common Director 
Advance paid  Rs.  27,70,400/- 

11. Kiran Jadhav Company Secretary Professional fees  Rs.       15,000/- 

12. Essential Bulk
Commodities Private
Limited

Common Director 

Reimbursement of 
Expenses 

 Rs.     100,889/- 

Purchase of 
Trademark 

 Rs.  13,85,000/- 
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Annexure 5 
FORM NO.MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
Viaan Industries Limited 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, 
N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel,
Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Viaan Industries Limited (here in after called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  

Based on my verification of the Viaan Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on  31st 
March, 2018 has complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, except to those mentioned 
below in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

Viaan Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March 2018, I have 
examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
according to the provisions thereof: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; –Not Applicable.

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act,1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 –.Applicable as the Promoters have acquired certain
shares during the year & disclosures was made to BSE Limited;

b. The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Prohibition  of Insider  Trading)
Regulations,1992; - Applicable as the Promoters have acquired certain shares during
the year & disclosures was made to BSE Limited;
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c. The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India  (Issue  of  Capital  and  Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations, 2009 – Applicable as the Company has issued equity
shares; Fully Convertible Debentures & convertible equity warrants during the
financial year under review;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 – Not Applicable as the Company
has not issued any share based on Employee Benefit during the financial year under
review; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations,2008 – Not Applicable as the Company has not issued and listed any
debt securities during the financial year under review;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents)Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client – Not
Applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue & Share
Transfer Agents during the financial year under review;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 –Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 –
Not Applicable as the Company has not bought back/propose to buy-back any of its
securities during the financial year under review.

VI. The management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable
to the Company & they have complied with most of the Rules & Regulations specified in the
Acts, mentioned below: 

i. Goods and Service Tax Act(GST Act)
ii. The Income Tax Act, 1961
iii. The Customs Act, 1962
iv. The Sales tax Act – Central and State Governments.
v. The Central Excise Act, 1944 and the rules made thereunder.
vi. The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
vii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulation and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
viii. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

1. The Company has re-designated Chairman & Managing Director along with CFO & Executive
Director during the year to review day to day affairs of the Company.

2. The Company has filed certain forms with Registrar of Companies with delay fees during the
year.
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3. The Company has 100% subsidiary Company in Dubai (UAE) & the same is generating
substantial revenue during the year.

4. The Company has issued 1465500 equity shares on preferential basis to non- promoters basis
at an issue price of Rs. 29/- per share (including premium of Rs. 28/- per share) & Company has
also issued 1465500 Fully Convertible Debenture(FCD) to non-promoter of the Company &
these FCD has not been converted into equity shares as on 31st March, 2018 & these were also
issued at an issue price of Rs. 29/- per FCD (including premium of Rs. 28/- per FCD)& these
shares were listed & trading approval was granted by BSE Limited.

5. The Company has issued 1500000 convertible equity warrants to the promoters of the
Company on preferential basis at an issue price of Rs. 42/- per warrants (including premium of
Rs. 41/- per warrants).

6. The registered office of the Company was shifted within the same city limit of Mumbai
during the year after all compliances was completed.

7. As informed & verified from the documents, Company has 100% subsidiary Company in
Dubai (UAE) & we have not conducted its secretarial audit.

I further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the 
Company has not been reviewed in the Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory 
Auditors and other designated professionals. 

I further report that: 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting Members views are captured and 
Recorded as part of the minutes 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
SD/- 
(S.K Pandey) 
Practicing Company Secretary 
C.P No. 5484
Date:14/08/2018
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure 6 
TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Form No. MGT-9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

 (i) CIN L52100MH1982PLC291306 

 (ii) Registration Date 19/10/1982 

 (iii) Name of the Company Viaan Industries Limited 

(iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company 
Company limited by shares/ 

Indian Non-Government Company 

(v) 
Address of the Corporate Office and Contact 

Details 

B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli 

Galli, Near Regency hotel, Andheri 

(East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069. 

Tel. No. : 022 49179999 

E-mail id : hindusthansafety@gmail.com 

(vi) 

Address of the Registered Office and Contact 

Details 

B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli 

Galli, Near Regency hotel, Andheri 

(East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069. 

Tel. No. : 022 49179999 

E-mail id : hindusthansafety@gmail.com 

 (vii) Whether listed company Yes / No Yes 

(viii) 
Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar 

and Transfer Agent, if any 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited 

Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J .R. BorichaMarg, Opp. 

Kasturba Hospital Lane, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai – 400011, 

Maharashtra. 

Tel. No. : (022) 23016761/8261 

E-mail id : busicomp@vsnl.com 
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated: 
Sr. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products/ 

services 

NIC Code of the Product/ 

service 

% to total turnover of the Company 

1 Other retail sale not in stores, stalls or 
markets 

4799 100 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES –

Sr. 
No. 

Name and address of the 
Company 

CIN / GLN Holding  / Subsidiary / 
Associate 

% of shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

1 Viaan Industries DMCC DMCC58204 Subsidiary 100% Sec. 2(87) of the 
Companies Act, 

2013 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)

a. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders 
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % of 

Change 
during 

the year 
01/04/2017 31/03/2018 

Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 
TOTS

HR 

Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

TOTSHR 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian

(g) Individuals/ HUF 54937800 0 54937800 51.51 55037800 0 55037800 50.91 -0.61

(h) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(j) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(k) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(l) Any Other.... 

* Directors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Directors Relatives 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Person Acting In Concern 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub Total (A)(1):- 54937800 0 54937800 51.51 55037800 0 55037800 50.91 -0.61

(2) Foreign 

(a) NRI Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Other Individuals
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(c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) Any Other.... 

Sub Total (A)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 54937800 0 54937800 51.51 55037800 0 55037800 50.91 -0.61
B. Public Shareholding

(1) Institutions

(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Banks FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) State Govet(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 192426 0 192426 0.81 0.81 
(h) Foreign Venture Capital 
Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) Others (specify)

* U.T.I. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Financial Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* I.D.B.I. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* I.C.I.C.I. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Government Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
* State Financial
Corporation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
* Otc Dealers (Bodies
Corporate) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Private Sector Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0 192426 0 192426 0.81 0.81 

(2) Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian 1044923 0 1044923 0.98 4270383 0 4270383 3.95 2.97 

(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Individuals
(iIndividual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 1004645 498750 1503395 1.41 6680312 498750 7179062 6.64 5.23 
(ii) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs 1 
lakh 44483695 0 44483695 41.71 37353813 0 37353813 34.55 -7.16

(c) Others (specify) 

* N.R.I. 7706 0 7706 0.01 562337 0 562337 0.52 0.51 

* Foreign Corporate Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Trust 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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* Hindu Undivided Family 3407790 0 3407790 3.20 2739738 0 2739738 2.53 -0.66

* Employee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

* Clearing Members 1266791 0 1266791 1.19 718184 0 718184 0.66 -0.52

* Depository Receipts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
* Other Directors & 
Relatives 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total (B)(2):- 51215550 498750 51714300 48.49 52388624 498750 52887374 48.92 0.43 
Total Public Shareholding 
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 51215550 498750 51714300 48.49 52581050 498750 53079800 49.09 0.61 
C. TOTSHR held by 
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total(A + B + C) 106153350 498750 106652100 100 107618850 498750 108117600 100 0 

b. Shareholding of Promoters

SI 
No. Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year Shareholding at the end of the year 

01/04/2017 31/03/2018 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

Encumbere
d to total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

Encumbered to 
total shares 

% change 
in 

shareholdi
ng during 
the year 

1 Shilpa Shetty Kundra 27468900 25.76 0 27493900 25.43 0 0.02 

2 Ripu Sudan Kundra 27468900 25.76 0 27543900 25.48 0 0.07 

c. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. 
No. Name 

Share Holding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

01/04/2017 31/03/2018 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 

company 

No. of 
Shares 

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year 

Type 

1 Shilpa Shetty Kundra 27468900 25.76 

22-09-2017 25000 0.02 27493900 25.78 BUY 
31-03-2018 27493900 25.78 

2 Ripu Sudan Kundra 27468900 25.76 

30-06-2017 50000 0.05 27518900 25.80 BUY 
14-07-2017 25000 0.02 27543900 25.83 BUY 

31-03-2018 27543900 25.83 

d. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders(other than Director, promoter and Holders of
GDRs and ADRs):
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Sr No. Top 10 shareholders 
name 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

01/04/2017 31/03/2018 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 

company 

No. of 
Shares 

% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year 

Type 

1 
Rajesh Krishanchand 
Arya 4605750 4.26 

12-05-2017 -96458 -0.09 4509292 4.17 SELL 

19-05-2017 -110717 -0.10 4398575 4.07 SELL 

14-07-2017 -25000 -0.02 4373575 4.05 SELL 

22-12-2017 -100000 -0.09 4273575 3.95 SELL 

29-12-2017 -50000 -0.05 4223575 3.91 SELL 

25-01-2018 -90000 -0.08 4133575 3.82 SELL 
31-08-2018 4133575 4.82 

2 Deepak Kothari 2666250 2.47 

31-03-2018 2666250 2.47 

3 
Dilesh Chandrakant 
Shah 900000 0.83 

30-09-2017 -100000 -0.09 800000 0.74 SELL 

13-10-2017 -20000 -0.02 780000 0.72 SELL 

24-11-2017 -50000 -0.05 730000 0.68 SELL 
01-12-2017 -50000 -0.05 680000 0.63 SELL 

08-12-2017 -100000 -0.09 580000 0.54 SELL 
15-12-2017 -300000 -0.28 280000 0.26 SELL 

22-12-2017 -140000 -0.13 140000 0.13 SELL 
05-01-2018 -140000 -0.13 0 0 
31-03-2018 0 0 

4. Khushbu Dilesh Shah 900000 0.83 
06-10-2017 -100000 -0.09 800000 0.74 SELL 
01-12-2017 -50000 -0.05 750000 0.69 SELL 

02-03-2018 -200000 -0.18 550000 0.51 SELL 

09-03-2018 -50000 -0.05 500000 0.46 SELL 
23-03-2018 -100000 -0.09 400000 0.37 SELL 

30-03-2018 -50000 -0.05 350000 0.32 SELL 

31-03-2018 350000 0.32 

5. Dilesh C Shah HUF 900000 0.83 

30-09-2017 -100000 -0.09 800000 0.74 SELL 

02-03-2018 -200000 -0.18 600000 0.55 SELL 

23-03-2018 -100000 -0.09 500000 0.46 SELL 
31-03-2018 500000 0.46 

6. 
Jayesh Chandrakant 
Shah 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 90000 0.83 
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7. Ami Hemal Doshi 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 
8. Vidhi Kunal Doshi 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 

9. Hemal Jitendra Doshi 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 
10. Yatin Gupta 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 

11. Jagruti Jayesh Shah 900000 0.83 
31-03-2018 900000 0.83 

12. Sonal Dipan Patwa 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 

13. Kunal Sharad Doshi 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 
14. Hiren Rajendra Jhaveri 900000 0.83 

31-03-2018 900000 0.83 

15. 
Keval Share Broking 
P.Ltd 767854 0.71 

07-04-2017 7656 0.01 775510 0.72 BUY 

14-04-2017 69174 0.06 844684 0.78 BUY 

21-04-2017 14819 0.01 859503 0.79 BUY 
28-04-2017 -563833 -0.52 295670 0.27 SELL 

05-05-2017 162258 0.15 457928 0.42 BUY 

12-05-2017 -10442 -0.01 447486 0.41 SELL 
19-05-2017 -41916 -0.04 405570 0.38 SELL 

26-05-2017 45031 0.04 450601 0.42 BUY 

02-06-2017 17463 0.02 468064 0.43 BUY 

09-06-2017 -57133 -0.05 410931 0.38 SELL 
16-06-2017 137420 0.13 548351 0.51 BUY 

23-06-2017 87003 0.08 635354 0.59 BUY 

30-06-2017 7853 0.01 643207 0.59 BUY 
07-07-2017 75092 0.07 718299 0.66 BUY 

14-07-2017 50097 0.05 768396 0.71 BUY 

21-07-2017 53280 0.05 821676 0.76 BUY 

28-07-2017 -91197 -0.08 730479 0.68 SELL 

04-08-2017 32065 0.03 762544 0.71 BUY 
11-08-2017 -14292 -0.01 748252 0.69 SELL 

18-08-2017 26869 0.02 775121 0.72 BUY 
25-08-2017 -104608 -0.10 670513 0.62 SELL 

01-09-2017 24878 0.02 695391 0.64 BUY 

08-09-2017 75626 0.07 771017 0.71 BUY 

15-09-2017 -131121 -0.12 639896 0.59 SELL 
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22-09-2017 36770 0.03 676666 0.63 BUY 

30-09-2017 40765 0.04 717431 0.66 BUY 
06-10-2017 -34621 -0.03 682810 0.63 SELL 

13-10-2017 67326 0.06 750136 0.69 BUY 

20-10-2017 4925 0.00 755061 0.70 BUY 

27-10-2017 64190 0.06 819251 0.76 BUY 
31-10-2017 26415 0.02 845666 0.78 BUY 

03-11-2017 2607 0.00 848273 0.78 BUY 

10-11-2017 -2368 -0.00 845905 0.78 SELL 
17-11-2017 47340 0.04 893245 0.83 BUY 

24-11-2017 -474840 -0.44 418405 0.39 SELL 

01-12-2017 -125944 -0.12 292461 0.27 SELL 

08-12-2017 -204296 -0.19 88165 0.08 SELL 

15-12-2017 315310 0.29 403475 0.37 BUY 
22-12-2017 50573 0.05 454048 0.42 BUY 

29-12-2017 -45141 -0.04 408907 0.38 SELL 
05-01-2018 -28264 -0.03 380643 0.35 SELL 

12-01-2018 -86763 -0.08 293880 0.27 SELL 

19-01-2018 -183762 -0.17 110118 0.10 SELL 

25-01-2018 112788 0.10 222906 0.21 BUY 

02-02-2018 75510 0.07 298416 0.28 BUY 
09-02-2018 179961 0.17 478377 0.44 BUY 

16-02-2018 10211 0.01 488588 0.45 BUY 
23-02-2018 151502 0.14 640090 0.59 BUY 

02-03-2018 168370 0.16 808460 0.75 BUY 

09-03-2018 64725 0.06 873185 0.81 BUY 
16-03-2018 30993 0.03 904178 0.84 BUY 

23-03-2018 135433 0.13 1039611 0.96 BUY 
30-03-2018 -53929 -0.05 985682 0.91 SELL 

31-03-2018 985682 0.91 
16. HT MEDIA LIMITED 0 0 

14-11-2017 1465500 1.36 1465500 1.36 Pref Allotment 

31-03-2018 1465500 1.36 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment 

Particulars 

Secured Loans 
Excluding 
Deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

(amount in 
Rs.) Deposits 

Total 
Indebtness 
(amount in 

Rs.) 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 

NIL 1,37,50,000 NIL 1,37,50,000 

i) Principal Amount NIL 1,37,50,000 NIL 1,37,50,000 
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL 6,87,985 NIL 6,87,985 
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Total (i+ii+iii) NIL 1,44,37,985 NIL 1,44,37,985 
Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 
Addition 4,24,99,500 6,37,102 NIL 4,24,99,500 
Reduction NIL 1,43,87,102 NIL 1,43,87,102 
Net Change 4,24,99,500 1,37,50,000 NIL 1,37,50,000 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL 
ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL 
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Total (i+ii+iii) 4,24,99,500 NIL NIL 4,24,99,500 
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Remuneration to Executive Director, Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. 
No. Particulars of Remuneration 

Name of MD/ 
WTD/MANA
GER/ 
EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR/ 
CEO 

Name of MD/ 
WTD/MANA
GER/ 
EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR/ 
CEO 

Total Amount 

Darshit Shah Ripu Sudan 
Kundra 

1 Gross Salary 21.00 60.00 81.00 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

NIL NIL NIL 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL NIL 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961 

NIL NIL NIL 

2 Stock Option related perquisites NIL NIL NIL 
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL 
4 Commission NIL NIL NIL 

- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL 
- Others, specify… NIL NIL NIL 

5 Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL 
Total (A) 21.00 60.00 81.00 
Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL 

A. Remuneration to other directors:
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. No. Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors 
Total Amount 

1 Independent 
Directors 

Nandanandan 
Mishra 

Satyendra 
Sarupria 

Mahinder 
Kumar 
Wadhwa 

Pradeep Sanat 
Shah 

 Fee for
attending
board /
committee
meetings

1.50 0.50 1.50 0.30 3.80 

 Comm
ission

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Others,
please specify

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Total (1) 1.50 0.50 1.50 0.30 3.80 
2 Other Non-

Executive 
Directors 

N. A N. A N. A N. A N. A
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 Fee for
attending
board /
committee
meetings

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Comm
ission

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 Others,
please specify

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Total (B)=(1+2) 1.50 0.50 1.50 0.30 3.80 
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Total 
Managerial 
Remuneration 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Overall 
Ceiling as per 
the Act 

The remuneration is well within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 

B. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

CFO 

Darshit Shah 

CEO 

Ripu Sudan 
Kundra 

Company 
Secretary 

Kiran 
Jadhav 

Company 
Secretary 
Shumaila 
Sernobat 

Total 

1 Gross Salary 21.00 60.00 0.60 0.50 82.10 
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-tax 

Act, 1961 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

2 Stock Option related 
perquisites 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
4 Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
- Others, specify… NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

5 Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Total 21.00 60.00 0.60 0.50 82.10 
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ix. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of Offences:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT / 
COURT] 

Appeal made, if any 
(give Details) 

Penalty 
NONE Punishment 

Compounding 

x. Other Officers in Default 

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 

Type Section of the 
Companies Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / 
Compounding fees 
imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT / 
COURT] 

Appeal made, if 
any (give Details) 

Penalty 
NONE Punishment 

Compounding 
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, RULE 5(1) 
OF CHAPTER XIII, COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Name of the 
Employee 

Designation 
Gross 

Remuneration % increase in 
Ratio of Remuneration 
of Each 

Director To Median 

Remuneration of 

Shilpa Shetty Kundra 
Additional 
Director 

NIL NIL NIL 

Darshit Indravadan Shah CFO/Executive 
Director 

21.00 NIL NIL 

Ripu Sudan Kundra Managing 
Director 

60.00 NIL NIL 

Shumaila Sernobat Company 
Secretary 

0.50 NIL NIL 

Kiran Jadhav Company 
Secretary 

0.60 NIL NIL 

Notes: 
1. The median remuneration of the employees of the company during the financial year was

Rs.3,60,000/-. 
2. Nature of employment of Executive Director & CEO is contractual, subject to termination by

3months notice from either side.
3. For other employee’s nature of employment is contractual, subject to termination by one or three

month notice from either side or salary in lieu of notice period.
4. None of the above employee is related to any Director of the Company.
5. None of the above employee except Shilpa Shetty Kundra to the Executive Director holds by

himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children 2% or more of the equity
shares of the Company. 

6. Employment terms and conditions are as per Company’s Rules.
7. Remuneration received as shown in the statement above includes basic salary and all other

allowances/perquisites as applicable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Economic Overview 

Global Economy  

In 2017, global economy grew at 3.8%. This growth was an outcome of a combination of factors namely 
higher investments, favourable monetary policies and buoyant global trade. Global growth is projected to 
edge up, in advanced economies; growth is driven by a pickup in capital spending, a turnaround in 
inventories and strengthening external demand. Among Emerging Market and Developing Economy 
(EMDE) groups, growth reflected firming activity in commodity exporters and continued solid growth in 
commodity importers. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) expects this momentum to continue and 
has forecasted that global economy could grow by 3.9% in 2018 as well as 2019. 

Indian Economy 

The Indian economy is expected to grow at 6.6% in the current fiscal as per official estimates, compared to 
7.1% in 2016-17. After a year of disruptions and growth slowdown, the Indian economy is consolidating 
the gains from the recent reforms and is moving in the right direction. This year 2017 several initiatives 
were taken by the government to propel growth. The transformational Goods and Services Tax (GST) was 
launched. The new tax reform is expected to benefit economic activity by eliminating multiple state tax 
systems, drawing informal activity into the formal sector and expanding the tax base. Introduced new 
Indian Bankruptcy code, addressing the issue’s by sending the major stressed companies for resolution 
and implementing a major recapitalisation package to strengthen the public sector banks. . As a result of 
these measures, the dissipating effects of earlier policy actions, and the export uplift from the global 
recovery, the economy began to accelerate in the second half of the year. 

India is poised to deliver one of the highest growth on a sustainable basis, at CAGR of 9.46% from 2016-
2021, driven by strong manufacturing led industrial expansion and consumption demands from private 
sector. The country’s GDP is estimated to cross USD 3,000 Billion by 2020. 

Industry Overview 

Gaming Industry 

Gaming Industry is growing ubiquitously and will surpass $151 billion by 2021. Recent technological 
advancements have been instrumental in market expansion.  Revenue is still largely attributable to the 
more mature markets and are quickly expanding to less developed markets. The adoption of 
smartphones and tablets are still driving growth in the market. By 2019 we believe that smartphone usage 
will become mainstream across the globe. As per reports, about 91% of games flow through digitally 
connected channels, as opposed to physical retail. 
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Online Gaming: 

The Indian gaming market, estimated at $338.4 million in revenue in 2017, is expected to grow to grow to 
$1.1 billion in 2021and the number of users is projected to rise to 628 million, backed by Internet 
penetration, sustained local development, improved digital payment infrastructure and preference 
towards subscription model. Android is by far the dominant mobile OS and will stay so for a long time to 
come due to its affordability and the high popularity of low-end smartphones in Indian markets, with 
users constantly on the lookout for anytime anywhere forms of entertainment. 

As per reports, the internet penetration is expected to reach 53 per cent of population by 2021. The 
surge in volumes of mobile internet users is likely to be complemented by a five times rise in data 
consumption and 1.6 times increase in disposable incomeof our country. Hence, the market is expected 
to be enhanced with young population, high internet volumes, engaged online users and improved 
paying propensity by 2021 
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The Key Driver’s for the market are proliferation of low cost smartphones amongst urban and rural 
population. The monetisation is realized through revenue streams like in-app purchase, pay per 
download, subscription service etc. by gamer(s) and in-app advertisement, incentive based advertisement 
etc. by ecosystem. Today, monetisation is dominated by advertisers and publishers. In the future, India is 
expected to move towards value driving consumption and comprehensive local development.  

Source: KPMG 

Entertainment & Animation Industry 

A recent joint report prepared by KPMG and FICCI suggests that the animation and VFX industry in 
India has grown by 16.4% in 2017 since the last year. It also suggests that the animation business has 
become a 59.5 billion industry driven majorly by a 31 per cent growth in VFX, with animation remaining 
steady at a growth rate of 9 percent and suggests that 85% of this growth is because of outsourced 
projects from the television and film sectors. The animation and VFX industry is estimated to grow at a 
CAGR of 17.2 per cent over 2017–21 to reach a size of INR131.7 billion, driven by a steady 9.5 per cent 
growth in animation and a 25 per cent growth in the VFX segment. The uptake of local IP/domestic 
content is likely to be the key growth driver for the animation industry, and the expected uptake of 
digital consumption through OTT platforms will add to the growing demand for localised content. 

Broadcasters are partnering with animation studios for original content, It suggests that investment and 
collaboration opportunities between animation studios and broadcasters in India have picked up, with 
the latter paying as much as �1.5 to 4 million per 30-minutes of animation content. 
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Source: IBEF 

Source: IBEF 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW: 

Viaan Industries limited was founded in Mumbai, India by renowned entrepreneur Raj Kundra and top 
celebrity Shilpa Shetty Kundra. The Company has a strong and growing presence across the promising 
sunrise sectors of Entertainment (Gaming, Licensing & Animation). Viaan has launched many products 
across fast growing segments of Entertainment. The Company’s vision is to drive a lifestyle change in 
masses through entertainment and technology offerings.  

The company has predominance presence in two verticals i.e. 

1. Gaming & Animation, wherein we develop in-house and outsourced range of games both for mobile
and computers &
2. Licensing & Technology, wherein we have created a brand “Viaan Mobiles” which is exported
majorly to CIS countries
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1. Gaming & Animation

 ChaseBid:

We launched Chasebid on September’17. ChaseBid is a reverse price bid auction app. Under this
mechanism, the bidder with the unique and lowest bid (at the time of auction closure) wins the
product, at the price at which he/she has bid for. ChaseBid offers its users the convenience to
choose from various bid packages, with larger value packs proving to be significantly economical
in nature as compared to those which are smaller in denomination. The largest bid package
implies a cost of Rs.10/bid. The company auctioned 6 products every week. ChaseBid has over
1mn+ strong user base and we expect significant improvement in bidding revenues going
forward.

 Aunty Boli Lagao Boli:

“Aunty Boli Lagao Boli” is the extension of Chasebid on television. The Season 1 of our television
game show, commenced on September 24th 2017. Season 1 consisted of 13 episodes, with 1 show
being telecasted every Sunday on Colors (Viacom 18) between 11am – 12pm.
The format was an interactive show in which our celebrity host, Ms. Archana Puransingh, would
invite different celebrities for each of the episodes and keep the audience engaged over a light-
hearted entertainment program. One premium car, Tata Nexon, was auctioned during each of
this episode for which users had to bid (unique and lowest bid) using the ChaseBid app.  The app
download trend witnessed huge acceleration post the launch of our TV show ‘Aunty Boli Lagao
Boli’.

We would soon launch a more-engaging Season-2, which will again be aired with renewed
format and more products for live auction, we intend this season to be a year-long event.

 ‘Shilpa Shetty- Domestic Diva’ :

Recently, the company launched, “Shipa Shetty- Domestic Diva”, an addictive restaurant story
game with lot of recipes curated by Shilpa shetty,where anyone can cook all kind of dishes. Since
the launch in the month of January’18, we have more than 9 lac downloads so far. This game,
which is a free to download and play model, earns revenues from in-app purchases and the
Google advertisements.

 Adventures of Ali Baba:

“Adventures of Ali Baba”. This is a 3D high end animation series crafted for the worldwide
market. The adventures of Ali Baba is a children's TV series based on two orphaned boys, Ali and
Baba, with special powers; born to protect the secrets of the dungeons under the care home.
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The company has already sold India rights, for Hindi and English, to leading broadcaster Season-
1 would be of 13 episodes, The Series would be aired this financial year. The company retains the 
IP for the franchise and the right for other regional languages in India, rights for other countries 
and other delivery platforms like OTT etc.  

We are exploring opportunities across all of these and are hopeful of meaningful contribution 
from this vertical in times to come 

2. Licensing & Technology

 Poker League:

Match IPL: 

Match IPL (MIPL) is an IP jointly owned by Viaan Industries and the International Federation of 
Match Poker (IFMP). MIPL is a regulated sports Match Poker tournament, officially sanctioned 
and backed by both the IFMP and the Indian Federation of Poker.  

In this poker league, teams play on one of the world’s most advanced poker playing AI bot and 
stand a chance to represent team India in international leagues. The Season-1 of Match IPL had 
seven teams competing for the coveted position. Each of these teams were licensed out for a fee of 
Rs. 50 lacs for a period of 10 years. Season-1 was a 2-day event, held on November ’17, in which 
team ‘Mumbai All Stars’ topped the league and represented team India in the Nation Cup, held 
in the UK, in December ’17. 

Post the grand success of Season-1, the company managed to license out 3 additional franchisees 
at a significant premium than those licensed out earlier (Rs. 75 lacs, per team, for 9 years). Season-
2 of Match IPL witnessed 10 teams competing against each another to top the league. Season-2 
was held on 31st March ‘ 2018 at Kolkata in which team ‘Haryana Hawks’ walked away with the 
trophy and would be subsequently representing team India in the pokers Asia cup to be held in 
Bangkok.  

Revenue contributors in this vertical - one time franchisee fee, league fees, App fees, 
advertisement revenues and sponsorship fees (title and team sponsors).  With increasing interest 
in MATCH IPL format, the company estimates increasing revenue contribution from sponsorship 
fees. 

3. Recent developments in the company

A. Game of Dot (G.O.D):

The company recently launched Game of Dot (G.O.D) on May’18.  Game of Dot (G.O.D), is a real
money skill based game, players have to spot the position of the ball in the picture of the batsman
– playing cricket where the ball has been removed. The game tests the skill, analysis and logic of
the player who has to use his experience and knowledge in guessing the imaginary placement of
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ball. G.O.D is inspired from various ‘Spot the ball’ contents games. The game can be played on 
desktop and mobile web browser.  

The Game used to offer weekly winning prize money of INR 2.00 Lacs in which players have to 
buy packages ranging from 1,5,11 or 28 dots @INR 20/- per dot and then play the game. The 
company received a tremendous response for this game, with more than 10K+ active users and 
revenues of more than INR 7 mn since our recent launch, despite being a weekly game so far. 
Responsing to this response and to better engage with our audience, the company has now 
launched a daily cash prize game of Rs. 28,499/- to be distributed among 20 winners as per their 
ranking 

B. VOW:

The company recently launched VOW this month, in association with game developer Mangala
Green Infra Ventures Private Limited.  VOW is a new farming game, wherein the game allows
you to immerse yourself in the world of farming, you can grow you’re our farm, explore huge
variety of crops, plant trees, raise animals & much more.

Since its recent launch, the game has witnessed more than 75K downloads and growing. The
game is available for download from Google play and iOS appstore globally.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL OVERVIEW  

The consolidated performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018, is as follows: 

Total revenue from operations at Rs. 26,855 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018, as against Rs. 13,469 
Lakhs for the corresponding previous period, supported by increase in volumes and revenues  

EBIDTA at Rs. 2,854 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018, as against Rs. 1,111 Lakhs for the 
corresponding previous period 

PAT of Rs. 2,784 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2018, as against Rs. 1,070 Lakhs for the 
corresponding previous period  

RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY 

As on March 31, 2018, the consolidated net worth stood at Rs. ~ 60 crore and the consolidated debt was at 
Rs.  crore. 

The cash and cash equivalents at the end of March 31, 2018 were Rs. 0.23 crore. 

The company is debt free as on March 31, 2018 
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HUMAN RESOURCES 

The company recognizes the importance of human value and ensures that proper encouragement both 
moral and financial is extended to employees to motivate them. 

As on March 31, 2018, the Company had a workforce of 54 people on rolls. 

OUTLOOK 

With the ecosystem growing each year, we foresee tremendous growth opportunity in the entertainment 
sector (Gaming & Animation) going forward. Rising smartphone penetration has resulted in an increase 
in mobile gaming players in the country. Easy availability of games on application stores coupled with 
their ease of download are some of the major factors aiding growth & users are playing more than one 
game in a day, and thus gaming has become more casual. 

As the market grows in terms of volume and usage over the next five years, it is expected to move to a 
‘Freemium’ model to recognize a better balance of revenue realization from the ‘Ecosystem’ and ‘Online 
gamer(s)’. ‘Freemium upgrades’ and ‘In-app purchases’ are expected to see an improved growth in 
future.  

Going forward, our company is well poised to take the benefits, from scale of opportunities offered by the 
gaming and licensing industry.  With the increase in penetration of internet, we have driven significant 
efforts in building the product line suited for masses, which has already found good traction and we have 
surpassed the proof of concept stage in many of our products/ business segments, which is evident with 
the increase in our margins and user base across the globe.Our focus on creating anddeveloping 
innovative gaming, animation content & entertainment for mass customers would  help us to take the 
company to greater heights. We are working towards introducing more and more games (social games & 
real money based skill games) to stay ahead of time and ensure more entertainment for the customers. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY 

The Compliance function of the Company is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and 
business units comply with regulatory and internal guidelines. The Compliance Department of the 
Company is continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring implementation of compliance functions in 
accordance with the directives issued by regulators, the Company's Board of Directors and the 
Company's Compliance Policy. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the 
Compliance Department and the status of compliance with regulatory/ internal guidelines on a periodic 
basis. New Instructions/ Guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities were disseminated across the 
Company to ensure that the business and functional units operate within the boundaries set by regulators 
and that compliance risks are suitably monitored and mitigated in course of their activities and processes 

ECONOMIC RISK 

A part of business is substantially dependent on the prevailing global economic conditions. The 
Company’s businesses have a high degree of dependence on the strength of the economy. Factors that 
may adversely affect the global economy and in turn India’s economic growth, that could affect the 
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demand for wellness and entertainment products. However, given that our key drivers for demand 
arefast growing population, increasing technology penetration and rising disposable income combined 
with growth in global animation and VFX industry, we do not expect this risk to affect our business. 

COMPETITION RISK 

This risk arises from more players wanting a share in the same pie. Like in most other industries, 
opportunity brings with itself competition. We face different levels of competition in each product 
segment, from domestic as well as multinational companies. However, Viaan has established strong 
brand goodwill in the market and a strong foothold in a wide spectrum of wellness and entertainment 
products. This combined with our celebrity and media linkages give us an edge over new entrants in the 
segment. We also counter this risk with the quality of our offerings, our customer -centric approach 
and our ability to innovate customer specific solutions, focusing on pricing and aggressive marketing 
strategy, coupled with prudent financial and human resources management and better control over costs. 
Thus, we do not expect to be significantly affected by this risk. 

TRADE RISK 

Our business can be affected by significant currency fluctuations as we are engaged in the business of 
import & export of mobile phones and export of entertainment and media content. Given the projected 
growth in the Indian economy and expected recovery in global trade, rising spending in the 
infrastructure and manufacturing space and increasing per capita and disposable income, it is estimated 
that demand for entertainment will continue to rise steadily. Viaan Industries is focused on establishing 
itself in the domestic and international brand. The association with Indian television channels for its 
animation shows reduces the dependence on global markets for revenue. Thus, we believe we have 
adequate mitigation in place for trade risk. 

REGULATORY RISK 

If we are unable to obtain required approvals and licenses in a timely manner, our business and 
operations may be adversely affected. We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and 
permissions for operating and expanding our business segments. Also, our range of nutraceutical 
products – Best Naturals requires certification by the Ministry of AYUSH. We may encounter delays in 
obtaining these requisite approvals, or may not be able to obtain such approvals at all, which may have 
an adverse effect on our revenues. However, the Government has come up with a number of initiativesto 
boost the sector – initiatives ranging from “Make in India”, “ International Yoga Day”, 100% FDI in the 
animation sector and a National Film Policy. As all industry predictions suggest that this will be the trend 
in the future as well and given our own experience in obtaining such permissions, we do not expect this 
risk to affect us materially in the coming years. 
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LIABILITY RISK 

This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to products, equipment, land & offices, life and 
third parties which may adversely affect our business. The Company attempts to mitigate this risk 
through contractual obligations and insurance policies. 

EXECUTION RISK 

The Company has undertaken number of orders in the last year for its mobile phones and several more 
are in the pipeline. In addition the company has entered the media & entertainment business. Timely 
execution of our business is largely dependent upon sourcing of products, establishment of distribution 
network, also media and channel associations on the animation front. Any delay in project 
implementation can impact revenue and profit for that period. Our implementation schedules are in line 
with the plans. Emergency and contingency plans are in place to prevent or minimize business 
interruptions. Therefore, we do not expect this risk to affect us materially in the future. Concerns like 
soaring inflation, an unfavorable tax structure, infrastructure bottle -necks, retaining talent and 
unprecedented natural and man -made disasters and political/ social turmoil which may affect our 
business, remain. However, these are threats faced bythe entire industry. With superior methodologies 
and improved processes and systems, the Company is well positioned to lead a high growth path. 

OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 

Although the competition in wellness, technology and animation & gaming segments is hectic, the 
Company has an edge over our competitors with our quality offerings and brand recall of our 
management team. In the short term, attraction and retention of customer base and increasing visibility 
remains a key focus area for our Company. 

On the domestic front, the full economic impact of demonetization is yet to reflect in the performance of 
all sectors. The implementation of GST will bring about a paradigm shift in the way our domestic 
business functions. We expect a positive impact of GST on the highly taxed media & entertainment 
segment. For the other verticals – wellness and mobile phones also GST has provided a level playing field 
for all entrants. The increasing demand for gaming and animation content in international markets are 
expected to benefit the Company. This growth is further supported by growing domestic media and 
entertainment sector. However large fluctuations global currency markets may have a negative impact on 
our businesses. Significant regulatory changes for the wellness, media & animation and mobile phone 
segments would affect the way we do business. 
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Cautionary Statement 

This report contains statements that may be ‘forward-looking’ including, but without limitation, 
statements relating to the implementation of strategic initiatives and other statements relating to 
Company’s future business developments and economic performance. While these forward-
looking statements indicate our assessment and future expectations concerning the development of 
our business, a number of risks, uncertainties and other unknown factors could cause actual 
developments and results to differ materially from our expectations. These factors include, but are 
not limited to, general market, macroeconomic, governmental and regulatory trends, movements in 
currency exchange and interest rates, competitive pressures, technological developments, changes 
in the financial conditions of third parties dealing with us, legislative developments and other key 
factors that could affect our business and financial performance. The Company undertakes no 
obligation to publicly revise any forward-looking statements to reflect future/likely events or 
circumstances 

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Corporate Governance standards for listed companies are regulated by Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (SEBI) through Regulation 15(2) of  Securities  and  Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR”) and also by the Ministry of 
Corporate affairs through the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). As a Company which believes in 
implementing corporate governance practices in letter and in spirit, the Company has adopted practices 
mandated by the Act and SEBI LODR and has established procedures and systems to remain compliant 
with it. This report provides the Company’s compliance with these provisions as on 31st March, 2018. 

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance: 
The Company’ is committed to good corporate governance and endeavors to implement the Code of 
Corporate Governance in its true spirit. The philosophy of the Company on corporate governance is to 
ensure transparency in all its operations,  make disclosures, and enhance stakeholder value without 
compromising in any way on compliance with the laws and regulations. The Company believes that good 
governance brings about sustained corporate growth and long-term benefits for all its stakeholders. 

Board of Directors 
The Company is managed by well- qualified professionals. All directors are suitably qualified, 
experienced and competent .The members of the Board of Directors are persons with considerable 
experience and expertise in Audit, Accounts, Finance, Administration, Media, Taxation, Capital Market, 
Hospitality, Sports and Marketing. The Company is benefitted by the experience and skills of the Board 
of Directors. . The Management of the Company is entrusted in the hands of the Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company who are headed by the Managing Director, who operates under the overall 
guidance, supervision and control of the Board. The Independent Directors have made disclosures to the 
Board confirming that there are no material, financial and/or commercial transactions between them and 
the company which could have potential conflict of interest with the company at large. The Company has 
a Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management personnel. The code is available on the official 
website of the company: www.v-ind.com.The Board reviews and approves strategy of the Company and 
oversees the actions and results of the Management to ensure that the long-term objective of enhancing 
value of the stakeholders is met. The Managing Director is an executive of the Company and draws 
remuneration from the Company. The Independent Directors of the Company are not inter-se related to 
each other. The Board has adopted a Policy on appointment of Directors and Senior Management and 
Succession Planning for orderly succession to the Board and the Senior Management. 

Information supplied to the Board 
In advance of each meeting, the Board is presented with relevant information on various matters related 
to the working of the Company, especially those that require deliberation at the highest level. A detailed 
agenda is sent to each Director in advance of the meetings of Board and Committees. To enable the Board 
to discharge its responsibility effectively, the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company briefs the Board at every meeting on the overall performance of the Company. Directors have 
separate and independent access to officers of the Company. In addition to items, which are required to 
be placed before the Board for its noting and/or approval, information is provided on various significant 
items. At the meeting of the Independent Directors held during the year, they have expressed satisfaction 
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on the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The Board 
also reviews strategy and business plans, annual operating and capital expenditure budgets, 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, compliance with Statutory/ Regulatory requirements and 
review of major legal issues, adoption of quarterly/ half-yearly / annual results, risk management 
policies, investors’ grievances, borrowings and investments, issue of securities, use of capital  issue 
proceeds, major accounting provisions and write-offs, corporate restructuring, minutes of meetings of the 
Audit Committee and other Committees of the Board, sustainability plans and its performance, etc. The 
Board reviews the compliance certificate issued by the Executive Director regarding compliance with the 
requirements of various Statutes, Regulations and Rules applicable to the business of the Company. 

Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management 
The Board of the Company satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments 
to the Board and to Senior Management. 

Code of Conduct 
Regulations 17(5) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, requires listed Companies to lay down a Code of 
Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management, incorporating duties of a Directors as laid down in the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for all Directors and Senior 
Management of the Company and the same has been placed on Company’s website www.v-ind.com.All 
Board Members including Independent Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with the respective Codes of Conduct for the year under review. A declaration signed by 
Managing Director & Executive Director to this effect is annexed to this report. In accordance with the 
requirement  of  SEBI  LODR,  the Company has formulated and adopted policy for determining material 
subsidiaries, policy  on  materiality  of and dealing with  related  party  transactions,  policy  for 
determining materiality for  disclosures.  These policies are posted on the Company’s website at 

CFO CERTIFICATION 
As required under Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI LODR, the Managing Director 
& Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board 
regarding the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2018. 

Maximum tenure of Independent Directors 
The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 25(2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Formal Letter of Appointment to Independent Directors 
The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided 
in the Companies Act, 2013. As per Regulation 46(2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, the terms and 
conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are placed on the Company’s website www.v-
ind.com 

Directors’ Interest in the Company 
Sometime, the Company does enter into contracts with companies in which some of the Directors of the 
Company are interested as director or member. However, these contracts are in the ordinary course of the 
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Company’s business without giving any specific weight age to them. Directors regularly make full 
disclosures to the Board of Directors regarding the nature of their interest in the companies in which they 
are directors or members. Full particulars of contracts entered with companies in which directors are 
directly or indirectly concerned or interested are entered in the Register of Contracts maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is placed in every Board Meeting for the noting of 
the Directors. 

REMUNERATION PAID TO DIRECTORS  
Remuneration Policy 
The objective of the Remuneration Policy of the Company for Directors and Senior Management is to 
focus on enhancing the value of the Company by attracting and retaining Directors and Senior 
Management for achieving objectives of the Company and to place the Company     in leading position. 
The Policy is guided by a reward framework and set of principles and objectives as more fully and 
particularly envisaged under Section 178 of the Act and principles pertaining to qualifications, positive 
attributes, integrity and independence of Directors, etc. 
While reviewing the Company’s remuneration policies and deciding on the remuneration for Directors, 
the Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) considers  performance of the 
Company, current trends  in the industry, qualifications of the appointee(s), their experience, past 
performance, responsibilities shouldered by them, the Statutory provisions and other relevant factors. 
The Non-Executive Chairman and Independent Directors are paid sitting fees and reimbursement of 
expenses incurred in attending the Board, Committee meetings and meeting of Independent Directors. 
The Board determines the remuneration, if any, of Non-Executive Directors, subject to requisite 
approvals, if any. 

Responsibilities & Functions of Board of Directors 
The Board of Directors of the listed entity shall have the following responsibilities: 

(i)Disclosure of information: 
1. Members of Board of Directors and key managerial personnel shall disclose to the board of directors
whether they, directly, indirectly, or on behalf of third parties, have a material interest in any transaction
or matter directly affecting the listed entity.
2. The Board of Directors and senior management shall conduct themselves so as to meet the expectations
of operational transparency to stakeholders while at the same time maintaining confidentiality of
information in order to foster a culture of good decision-making.

(ii)Key functions of the Board of Directors-
1. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, major plans of action, risk policy, annual budgets and
business plans, setting performance objectives, monitoring implementation and corporate performance,
and overseeing major capital expenditures, acquisitions and divestments.
2. Monitoring the effectiveness of the listed entity’s governance practices and making changes as needed.
3. Selecting, compensating, monitoring and, when necessary, replacing key managerial personnel and
overseeing succession planning. 
4. Aligning key managerial personnel and remuneration of board of directors with the longer Term
interests of the listed entity and its shareholders.
5. Ensuring a transparent nomination process to the board of directors with the diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective and gender in the board of Directors.
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6. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of management, members of the Board of
Directors and shareholders, including misuse of corporate assets and abuse in related party transactions.
7. Ensuring the integrity   of the listed entity’s   accounting and financial reporting systems, including the
independent audit, and that appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems for risk
management, financial and operational control and compliance with the law and relevant standards.
8. Overseeing the process of disclosure and communications.
9. Monitoring and reviewing Board of Director’s evaluation framework.

(iii) Other responsibilities:
1. The Board of Directors shall provide strategic guidance to the listed entity, ensure effective monitoring
of the management and shall be accountable to the listed entity and the shareholders.
2. The Board of Directors shall set a corporate culture and the values by which executive throughout a
group shall behave. 
3. Members of the Board of Directors shall act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with due diligence
and care, and in the best interest of the listed entity and the shareholders.
4. The   Board of   Directors   shall encourage continuing directors training to ensure that the members of
Board of Directors are kept up to date.
5. Where decisions of the Board of Directors may affect different shareholder groups differently, the
Board of Directors shall treat all shareholders fairly.
6. The Board of Directors shall maintain high ethical standards and shall take into account the interests of
stakeholders.
7. The Board of Directors shall exercise objective independent judgment on corporate affairs.
8. The   Board of   Directors shall consider assigning a sufficient number of non-executive members of the
Board of   Directors capable of exercising independent judgment to tasks where there is a potential for
conflict of interest.
9. The Board of Directors shall ensure that, while rightly encouraging positive thinking, these do not
result in over-optimism that either leads to significant risks not being recognized or exposes the listed
entity to excessive risk.
10. The Board of Directors shall have ability to ‘step back ‘to assist executive management by challenging
the assumptions underlying: strategy, strategic initiatives (such as acquisitions), risk appetite, exposures
and the key areas of the listed entity’s focus.
11. When committees of the Board of Directors are established, their mandate, composition and working
procedures shall be well defined and disclosed by the Board of Directors.
12. Members of the   Board of   Directors shall be able to commit themselves effectively to their
responsibilities.
13. In order to fulfill their responsibilities, members of the Board of Directors shall have access to
accurate, relevant and timely information. 
14. The Board of Directors and senior management’s hall facilitate the independent Directors to   perform
their   role   effectively   as   a member of the   Board of Directors and also a member of a committee of
Board of Directors.

Performance Evaluation 
Pursuant  to  the  provisions  of  the  Act  and  Part  D of Schedule II of SEBI LODR, evaluation of every 
Director’s performance was done by Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The performance 
evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, Committees thereof and Chairman of 
the Company was carried out by the Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was 
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carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated. Structured 
questionnaires, covering various aspects of the evaluation such as adequacy of the size and composition 
of the Board and Committees thereof with regard to skill, experience, independence, diversity, attendance 
and adequacy of time given by the Directors to  discharge their duties, Corporate Governance practices, 
etc. were circulated to the Directors for the evaluation process. The Directors expressed their satisfaction 
with the evaluation process and the outcome of evaluation which reflects high level of engagement of the 
Board of Directors amongst its members and with the management. 

The Board of Directors is collectively responsible for selection of a member on the Board. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Company follows defined criteria for identifying, screening, 
recruiting and recommending candidates for election as a Director on the Board. The criteria for 
appointment to the Board include: 

- composition of the Board, which is commensurate with the size of the Company, its portfolio,
geographical spread and its status as a listed Company;

- desired age and diversity on the Board;
- size of the Board with optimal balance of skills and experience and balance of Executive and

Non-Executive Directors consistent with the requirements of law;
- professional qualifications, expertise and experience in specific area of business;
- balance of skills and expertise in view of the objectives and activities of the Company;
- avoidance of any present or potential conflict of interest;
- availability of time and other commitments for proper performance of duties;
- Personal characteristics being in line with the Company’s values, such as integrity, honesty,

transparency, pioneering mindset.

Independent Directors Meeting 
In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 25(3) of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015, the independent directors held their separate meeting on 14th February, 2018, without 
the attendance of non-independent directors and members of Management, to inter alia discuss the 
following: 

i. review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;
ii. Review the performance of the executive directors and non-executive directors;
iii. Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company
iv. Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably

perform their duties; and
v. Review the responsibility of independent directors with regard to internal financial controls.

All independent directors were present at the meeting. 

The independent director’s present elected Nandanadnan Mishra as Chairman for the meeting, 
deliberated on the above and expressed their satisfaction on each of the matters. 
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Remuneration of Directors 
Pecuniary transactions with non-executive directors 
During the year under review, there were no pecuniary transactions with any non-executive director of 
the Company. 

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors 
Non-executive directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. 
They bring in an external perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance 
while maintaining objective judgment. They also oversee corporate governance framework of the 
Company.The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, 
reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings and commission as 
detailed hereunder: 
i. A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board,

Committee of the Board and meeting of Independent Directors attended by him of such sum as may
be approved by the Board of Directors, within the overall limits prescribed under the Act and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014;

ii. As per provisions of the Act, the Independent Directors are not entitled to fresh grant of any Stock
Options.

The Managing Director & CEO and Non-Executive Non- Independent Director (not being the Chairman) 
do not receive sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board / Committees of the Board of Directors of 
the Company. 

As stated earlier, the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing criteria of making payments to directors, 
key managerial personnel and employees is placed on www.v-ind.com. 

Non-executive directors 
Non-executive directors are paid sitting fees and commission as earlier stated in this Report. 

Managing Director 
During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration to Darshit Shah, Executive Director 
and Ripu Sudan kundra, Managing Director of the Company as provided in detail in an annexure to the 
Directors' Report in section VI (B) of Form MGT-9, i.e. extract of the Annual Return. 

Managing Director is entitled to superannuation benefits payable in the form of an annuity from an 
approved life insurance company, which form part of the perquisites allowed to him. 
No pension is paid by the Company. 

Details of Remuneration to directors 
The Company has no stock option plans for the directors and hence, it does not form part of the 
remuneration package payable to any executive and/or non-executive director. During the year under 
review, none of the directors was paid any performance-linked incentive. 
In 2017-18, the Company did not advance any loans to any of the non-executive directors, and/or 
Managing Director. Details of remuneration paid/payable to directors during 2017-18 are provided in an 
annexure to the Directors' Report in section VI(B) of Form MGT-9, i.e. extract of the Annual Return. 
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Compliances regarding Insider Trading 
The Company had in place a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Corporate 
Disclosure Practices’, in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, as 
amended.  
Accordingly, the Board at its meeting approved and adopted, 

a. Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information;
and

b. Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by its employees and other connected
persons.

The said codes are being adhered to. 
The Code referred to in (a) above is placed on the Company’s website www.v-ind.com 

Familiarization of Independent Directors 
The details of familiarization programme for Independent Directors have been disclosed on website of 
the Company. In addition to the extensive induction and training provided   as part of the familiarization 
programme, the Independent Directors are also taken through various business and functional sessions in 
the Board meetings including the Board meetings to discuss strategy. The details of Directors’ induction 
and familiarization are available on the Company’s website at www.v-ind.com 

Composition of Board 
The Board of Directors of the Company is composed of committed persons with considerable experience 
in various fields. The Board is properly constituted as per Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations 2015.As on the date of this report, the Board Strength consists of in all 6 directors. Out of 
them, 3are Non-Executive Independent Directors, 1 is Executive Director/CFO; 1 is Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director and 1is Managing Director. 

Further none of the Directors on the Board is a Member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of 
more than 5 Committees across all the Companies in which he is a Director. Also necessary disclosures 
regarding Committee positions in other public Companies have been made to the Company by the 
Directors at regular intervals. 

Meetings of the Board of Director 
During the Financial Year 2017-2018, Six Board Meetings were held on the following dates: 

1. 24th May, 2017
2. 23rd August, 2017
3. 31st August, 2017
4. 01st December, 2017
5. 21st December, 2017
6. 13th February, 2018
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Details of the Board of Directors and External Directorships 

Particulars of the Board’s Composition, Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings and at the previous Annual General 
Meeting, number of other Directorships and Board-Committee memberships held as on 31 March 2018, are given 
below: 

Sr. No. Name of the Director, 
Designation and Category 

Attendan
ce of 
Board 
Meetings 

Attendan
ce at 
previous 
AGM 

No. of 
other 
Director- 
ships(*) 

Number of other Board 
Committee positions (@) 

As 
Chairman 

As 
Member 

1 Nandanadnan Mishra 6 Yes 4 4 3 
2 Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa 6 Yes 3 3 3 
3 Ripu Sudan Kundra (Alias 

Raj Kundra) 
5 Yes 1 0 0 

4 Darshit Indravandan Shah 6 Yes 1 0 2 
5 Shilpa Shetty Kundra 3 No 1 0 0 
6 Pradeep Sanat Shah 

(resigned on 23rdAugust, 
2017) 

1 No - 0 0 

7 Satyendra Mohanlal 
Sarupria (appoint on 31st 
August, 2017) 

2 No 1 2 0 

Notes 
(*)     includes directorships held in public limited Companies only. Directorships held in Private Companies, Foreign 
Companies and Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded. 
(@)   includes only positions held in Audit Committee and Shareholders’/ Investor Grievance Committee of the 
Board of Directors 

Committees of the Board 
The Board has constituted following Committees of Directors: 

 Audit Committee,
 Nomination & Remuneration Committee, and
 Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee.

Audit Committee 
Terms of Reference: 
The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned under Listing Regulations 
and Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. All the 
Members of Audit Committee are qualified and having insight to interpret and understand financial 
statements. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 
Company’s internal controls and financial reporting process and, inter alia, performs the following 
functions; 

1. Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of financial information
to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;
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2. To review and examine with management the quarterly financial results before submission to
the Board;

3. To review  and examine with the management the annual financial statement and Auditor
Report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to –
matters to be included in the directors responsibility statement to be included in the board
report;  changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same; major
accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
disclosure of any related part transactions; modified opinion in the draft audit report;

4. To review management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations;

5. To recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Statutory
Auditors of the Company and approval for payment of any other services rendered by the
Auditors;

6. To review with management the annual financial statements as well as investments made by
the unlisted subsidiary companies;

7. To approve or any subsequent modification/disclosure of any Related Party Transactions in
accordance with the Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company; 

8. To approve the appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background of the candidate;

9. To review and monitor the Auditor independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process;

10. To review the performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the Internal Control
System;

11. To discuss with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature & scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

12. To recommend appointment, removal, remunerations and terms of appointment of Internal
Auditor of the Company;

13. To scrutinize inter-corporate loans and investments made by the Company;
14. To review the adequacy of the Internal Audit function, including the structure of internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage & frequency of internal audit, discussing with Internal Auditor any significant
finding and reviewing the progress of corrective actions on such issues;

15. To evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems;
16. To do the valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
17. To review the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle blower mechanism.
19. To review the Company’s financial and risk management policies.
20. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture

holders, creditors & shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends).
21. To review the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue;

rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
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those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take steps in the matter. 

22. To carry out any other function as mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.
23. To review management letters/ letters of internal control weakness issued by the Statutory

Auditors.
24. To review Statement of deviations in terms of Regulation 32(1) & 32(7); including report of

monitoring agency, if applicable.
The periodic review ensures that all areas within the scope of the Committee are reviewed. All members 
of the Audit Committee possess strong knowledge of accounting and financial management. The 
Chairman of the Company, the Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, the Internal Auditors and 
Statutory Auditors are regularly invited to attend the Audit Committee Meetings. The Company 
Secretary is the Secretary to the Committee. The Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. The significant audit observations and corrective actions as may be required and taken by the 
management are presented to the Audit Committee. The Board has accepted all recommendations made 
by the Audit Committee from time to time. 

Meetings of the Committee: 
The Committee met Six times during the financial year 2017-18 on i.e. 24thMay, 2017, 3rd August, 2017, 
23rdAugust 2017, 01stDecember, 2017, 21st December, 2017& 13th February, 2018. 

Constitution of the Committee: 
The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in conformity with SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Director and is 
financially literate and has accounting related financial management expertise. 

The Composition of the Committee, together with the details of the attendance of each member as at 31st 
March, 2018 is given below: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Designation Meetings 
attended 

Category 

1. Nandanadnan Mishra Chairman 4 Non- ExecutiveIndependent 
Director 

2. Darshit Indravandan Shah Member 4 Executive Non-Independent 
Director 

3. Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa Member 4 Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

4. Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria Member 2 Non- Executive Independent 
Director 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Terms of the Committee: 
1. To scrutinize and approve registration of transfer of shares/warrants issued or to be issued.
2. The Shareholders ‘and Investors ‘complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares,  non-receipt of

annual report, non-receipt of dividends and matters related thereto.
3. To exercise all power conferred on the Board of Directors under Articles of Association.
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4. Attending to investors’ queries and complaints regarding transfer, dividend, annual reports, etc.
5. Attending to complaints of Investor routed by SEBI/Stock Exchanges/ RBI.

Details of Pending Investor Grievances and Compliance Officer: 
There were no investor grievances pending for Redressal as the end of the financial year and all the 
queries from the stakeholders were attended to promptly .Further there were no pending transfers for the 
year under review. 

Further the details of the Compliance Officer designated for handling of the Investor grievances is 
provided as under: 

Name: Kiran Jadhav 
Address: B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, 
Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069. 
Tel. No. : 022 49179999 
E-mail id: hindusthansafety@gmail.com

Composition & Meeting 
The Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors, namely, Nandanadan Mishra 
(Chaiman), Satyendra Sarupria (Member) (appointed on 31st August, 2017), Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa 
(Member) and 1 Executive Non-Independent Director namely Darshit Indravandan Shah as member of 
the committee.    

Responsibilities of Compliance Officer 
The compliance officer of the listed entity shall be responsible for- 
 

a. Ensuring conformity with the regulatory provisions applicable to the listed entity in 
letter and spirit. 

b. co-ordination with and reporting to the Board, recognized stock exchange(s)and
depositories with respect to compliance with rules, regulations and other directives of
these authorities in manner as specified from time to time. 

c. Ensuring that the correct procedures have been followed that would result in correctness,
authenticity and comprehensiveness of the information, statements and reports filed by
the listed entity under these regulations.

d. Monitoring email address of grievance redressal division as designated by the listed
entity for the purpose of registering complaints by investors.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

Terms of the Committee 
The Committee was renamed as Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the terms of reference of 
the said committee has been revised in order to align with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. The Committee has devised a policy on 
Board Diversity. The objective of the policy is to ensure that the Board comprises adequate number of 
members with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the governance and strategic needs of 
the Company. 
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No Stock option has been allotted to any of the Directors during the financial year 2017-2018. The terms of 
reference of Committee broadly includes identifying & selection of candidates for appointment as 
Directors/Independent Director based on certain laid down criteria; performing all such functions as are 
required to be performed by the Committee with regard to such matters as specified under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. It formulate the criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the 
Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees. While reviewing the Company’s remuneration policies and deciding on the remuneration, the 
Board and the Committee considers the performance of the Company, the current trends in the industry, 
the qualifications of the appointee, their experience, past performance, responsibilities shouldered by 
them, the statutory provisions and other relevant factors.  . 
The Committee also ensures that the level & composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 
attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The 
Committee also ensures that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets 
appropriate performance benchmark. The Committee also ensures that the remuneration to directors, key 
managerial personnel & senior management involves a balance between fixed & incentive pay reflecting 
short & long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company & its goals.  

1. To determine/recommend the criteria for determining appointment, qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to
remunerations of directors, Key Managerial personal and other employees.

2. To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of
directors.

3. To devise a policy on desired age and diversity of board of directors.
4. To identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal. 

5. To review and determine all elements of remuneration package of all the Executive Directors, i.e.
salary, benefits, bonus, stock options, etc.

Composition 
The Committee comprises of 3 Non-Executive Independent Directors, namely Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa 
(Chairman), Nandanadnan Mishra (Member), Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria(Member) and 1 Executive 
Non-Independent Director namely Darshit Indravandan Shah as member of the committee. 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 one Nomination and remuneration committee meeting 
was held on 02nd August, 2018. 

Subsidiary Company 
The Company has subsidiary company at Dubai (UAE). 

Disclosures: 
• During the financial year 2017-18, there was no materially significant Related Party

Transaction, with the Directors, or the Management, their relatives etc. having potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Further as a matter of policy, all the
transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18, are
disclosed in the Annual Report of the Company on a regular basis.
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• The Company has no material significant related party transactions that may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company. The details of transactions between the Company
and the related parties are given under Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended
31st March, 2018. The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has
been uploaded on the Company website at www.v-ind.com

• The Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India to the extent applicable.

• The Company has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business principles for the members of
Board and senior management personnel.

• The Company has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (“the
Code”) in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and its subsequent amendment. The code
expressly lays down the guidelines and the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be
made, while dealing with shares of the Company and cautioning them on the consequences
of non-compliance thereof. However whistle blower policy has not been formed during the
year under review. Further, we affirm that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee. Employees can report to the Management concerned regarding unethical
behavior, act or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct Policy.

• The Company has ensured that the person who is being appointed as an Independent
Director has the requisite qualifications and experience which would be of use to the
Company and which in the opinion of the Company would enable him to contribute
effectively to the Company in his capacity as an Independent Director.

• The Company has complied with all requirements of regulatory authorities. No
penalties/strictures were imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges/SEBI or any other
statutory authority on any matter related to Capital market.

• The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations.
Risk Management 
The Company has a Risk Management Policy which has been adopted by the Board of Directors, 
currently, the Company's risk management approach comprises of governance, identification & 
assessment of risk. The risks have been prioritized through a Companywide exercise. Members of Senior 
Management have undertaken the ownership and are working on mitigating the same through co-
ordination among the various departments, insurance coverage, security policy and personal accident 
coverage for lives of all employees. 

Risk Assessment and Minimization procedures are in existence and are reviewed periodically. The Risk 
Management Committee monitors and reviews the risk assessment, mitigation and risk management 
plan for the Company from time to time. 

Preventing Conflict of Interest 
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that rules are in place to avoid conflict of interest by 
Board Members and the Management Committee. The Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the 
members of the Board and Senior Management team. The Code provides that the Directors are required 
to avoid any interest in contracts entered into by the Company. If such an interest exists, they are 
required to make adequate disclosure to the Board and to abstain from discussion, voting or otherwise 
influencing the decision on any matter in which the concerned Director has or may have such interest. 
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The members of the Board and the Management Committee annually confirm the compliance of the Code 
of Conduct to the Board. The members of the Board and the Management Committee also submit on an 
annual basis, the details of individuals to whom they are related and entities in which they hold interest 
and such disclosures are placed before the Board. The members of the Board inform the Company of any 
change in their directorship(s), chairmanship(s)/ membership(s) of the Committees, in accordance with 
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. Transactions with any of the 
entities referred above are placed before the Board for approval. Details of all Related Party Transactions 
are placed before the Audit Committee on quarterly basis. 

Affirmation and Disclosure 
All the members of the Board and the Management Committee have affirmed their compliance with the 
Code of Conduct as on 31st March, 2018 and a declaration to that effect signed by the 
Managing/Executive Director and CEO is attached and forms part of this Report. The members of the 
Management Committee have made disclosure to the Board of Directors relating to transactions with 
potential conflict of interest with the Company however there were no material, financial or commercial 
transaction between the Company and the Independent Directors. 

All details relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a pecuniary 
interest are provided to the Board and the interested Director neither participated in the discussion nor 
voted on such matter. 

Means of Communication: 
The Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company are forwarded to the Stock 
Exchanges immediately up on its approval by the Board of Directors and are simultaneously published in 
leading newspapers in English and Marathi(regional language). 

In accordance with the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, data pertaining to Shareholding Pattern, 
Quarterly Financial Results and Other Details are forwarded to the Stock Exchange. 

During the year under review, various presentations were made to the institutional investors or analysts 
and the same was intimated to BSE Limited from time to time. 

Details of General Meetings: 
Annual General Meeting 
The details of last 3 years Annual General Meeting together with the details of the special resolution 
passed thereat is provided hereunder; 

2014-15 Monday 28th 
September, 
2015 at 2.30 
p.m. 

Emami Conference Hall, 
Association of 
Corporate Advisers & 
Executive 6, Lyon Rang, 
3rd Floor, Unit – II, 
Kolkata -700 001. 

Following special Resolution was passed: 
i. Increase in authorized Capital of the

Company from Rs. 3.25 crore to Rs. 3.75 crore. 
ii. Issue of 500000 equity shares on preferential

basis to promoters & Non-Promoters at an
issue price of Rs. 200/- per share.

2015-16 Wednesday,14th 
September, 

Emami Conference Hall, 
Association of 

Following special Resolution was passed: 
i. Increase in authorized Capital of the Company
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2016 at 2.30 
p.m. 

Corporate Advisers & 
Executive 6, Lyon Rang, 
3rd Floor, Unit – II, 
Kolkata -700 001. 

from Rs. 3.75 crore to Rs. 11.00 crore. 
ii. Issue of bonus shares in ratio of 2 new equity

shares for one shares held as on record date. 
iii. Approval of related party transactions.

2016-17 Thursday, 28th 
September, 
2017 

Sri Guru Nanak 
Sachkhand Darbar, 
Dharam Sheel 
Community Hall, Block 
No. 5/6, Room No: 1, 
Mulund Colony, Opp 
Youth circle, 
Mulund(West), 
Mumbai-400082 

Following special resolution was passes: 
i. Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis.
ii. Issue of Fully Convertible Debentures (FCD)
into Equity on Preferential Basis.
iii.To Appointment of Mr. Satyendra Mohanlal
Sarupriya (DIN: 00270718), as Independent
Director for a term of five years.

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

Financial Year Date Venue Special Resolutions passed 
NIL 

Postal Ballot 

Date of Notice Particulars of Resolutions Date of Shareholders 
Resolution(Declaration of Voting 
Results) 

11th April, 2017 1) Re-Designation Of Ripu Sudan Kundra
(Alias Raj Kundra) As Chairman And
Managing Director Of The Company.
2) Re-Designation Of Darshit Indravadan
Shah As Cfo And Executive Director Of
The Company.
3) The Acquisition Of Running Business
Activities Of Yo-Yo Frozen Yogurts From
One Of The Group Company.
4) Amendments In Object Clause.

22nd May, 2017 

23rd January 2018 1) To Incerease of Authorised Capital
from Rs. 11,00,00,000 to Rs. 12,00,00,000
of the Company And Alteration of
Memorandum Of Association.
2) Issue of 1500000 convertible Equity
warrants of Re. 1/- each at an issue price
of Rs. 42/- each(including premium of
Rs. 41/- each) on Preferential basis to
promoters of the Company.

08th March 2018 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

77 

General Shareholders’ Information: 

Date, Time & venue of Annual General 
Meeting 

Tuesday, 25th September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m.at Sri Guru 
Nanak Sachkhand Darbar, Dharam Sheel Community 
Hall, Block No.5/6, Room No.1, Mulund Colony, Opp. 
Youth Circle, Mulund (West), Mumbai – 400082. 

Listing on Stock Exchanges The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE 
Limited. 

Market Share Price Data: 
Monthly high and low quotations and volume of shares traded on Bombay Stock Exchange for Financial 
Year 2017-18 are; 
Month High Low Number of Shares 
Apr-17 25.95 14.35 37,61,877 
May-17 23.70 18.70 31,02,543 
Jun-17 26.70 19.50 26,45,630 
Jul-17 22.70 20.00 19,73,084 
Aug-17 29.00 20.00 28,87,918 
Sep-17 32.50 23.50 38,46,135 
Oct-17 34.70 29.00 19,61,293 
Nov-17 32.25 26.70 48,46,251 
Dec-17 37.95 31.50 99,98,130 
Jan-18 44.35 34.05 99,07,921 
Feb-18 43.40 28.50 66,47,248 
Mar-18 40.70 28.60 60,21,033 

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 
The Company has trading activities in India & Dubai & development of mobile based games in India, 
however both the operations are managed independently. The Company has taken adequate steps in case 
of foreign exchange fluctuations. 
Share Transfer System: 
The Share transfer is processed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and approved by Share Transfer 
Committee, if the documents are complete in all respects, within thirty days from the date of lodgment. 

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 
SEBI vide circular dated 3rd June, 2011 introduced SCORES, i.e., SEBI Complaints Redress System the 
system of processing of investors complaints in  a centralized web based complaints redress portal 
known as ‘SCORES’. The salient features of this system are: centralized database of all Complaints, online 
upload Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by concerned Companies and online viewing by investors of action 
taken on the complaints and its current status. The Company is registered with SEBI under the SCORES 
system. 

ISIN 
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The Company’s Demat International Security Identification Number (ISIN) for its equity shares in NSDL 
and CDSL is INE32401027. 

Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2018, isas Follows; 

No. of Shares Range No. of 
Shareholders 

% of Shareholders Value of Shares 
Held 

% of 
Shareholding 

Up To 5000 6949 94.87 4052256 3.75 
5001 To 10000 144 1.97 1113322 1.03 
10001 To 20000 74 1.01 1148662 1.06 
20001 To 30000 32 0.44 799932 0.74 
30001 To 40000 12 0.16 427985 0.40 
40001 To 50000 16 0.22 748125 0.69 
50001 to 100000 15 0.20 1120415 1.04 
100001  & Above 83 1.13 98706903 91.30 
Total 7325 100 108117600 100 

Shareholding Pattern 

Sr. 
Nos. 

Category As on 31st March, 2018 As on 31st March, 2017 

No. of Shares 
held 

%. of Shares 
held 

No. of Shares 
held 

% of 
Shareholdi

A Promoters 

1. Individuals/HUF 5,50,37,800 50.91 54937800 51.51 

Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 

Any Others(Specify) 
 

0 0 0 

TOTAL(A) 5,50,37,800 50.91 54937800 51.51 

B Public Shareholding 

1. Institutions 0 0 0 0.00 

Foreign Institutional Investors 192426 0.18 0 0.00 

2. Non-Institutions 

Bodies Corporate 1075492 0.28 

(a) Individual Shareholders holding up 
to Rs.2 Lac 

9207600 8.52 2800575 12.75 

 (b) Individual Shareholders holding 
above Rs.2 Lac 

35322275 32.67 43920955 31.82 

NRIs /HUF’s/Clearing Members 8357499 7.73 3917278 3.64 

TOTAL(B) 53079800 49.09 51714300 48.49 

TOTAL(A+B) 10,81,17,600 100.00 106652100 100.00 

Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs: 
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The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs. 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 
The Company’s equity shares are available for trading in the depository systems of National Securities 
Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited. 

As on 31st March, 2018, 108117600 equity shares, constituting 99.53% of the paid-up equity capital of the 
Company, stood dematerialized. 

Total Number of shares dematerialized as on 31.03.2018 
Depository No. of Shares % of Paid up Capital 
NSDL 43658500 40.38 
CDSL 63960350 59.16 
Physical 498750 0.46 
Total 108117600 100.00 

Financial Calendar (Tentative): 
Financial Year :  01st April, 2018 - 31st March, 2019 
First quarter result :  14th August, 2018 
Half-yearly results :  14thDecember 2018  
Third quarter results :  14th February, 2019 
Annual results :  End of May, 2019 
Annual General Meeting :  September, 2019 

Address for Correspondence: 
VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, Andheri 
(East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069. 
Tel. No. : 022 49179999 
E-mail id:hindusthansafety@gmail.com

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 
A practicing Company Secretary carries out reconciliation of share capital audit, on half-yearly basis to 
reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and total issued and listed capital. The audit 
confirms that the total issued/paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical 
form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL & CDSL. 

Audit Qualifications 
There are no Audit qualifications in the Company’s financial statement for the year under review. 

The statutory Auditors have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and the same is annexed to this Report. 

Non Mandatory Requirements 
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i) The Board
At present, there is no separate office in the Company for use of Chairman.

ii) Shareholders Rights
Half yearly financial results including summary of the significant events are presently not being sent
to shareholders of the Company.

iii) Audit Qualifications
There is no audit qualification. Every endeavor is made to make the financial statements without
qualification.

iv) Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Company has appointed Chairman-Managing Director during February, 2017. A separate person
is Executive Director of the Company.

v) Reporting of Internal Auditors 
Reports of Internal Auditors are placed before the Audit Committee for its review.

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To, 
The Members, 
Viaan Industries Limited 
B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, 
N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel,
Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Sanguine Media Limited 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2018 as stipulated in Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. 

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for 
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the explanations given to us, 
we certify that the Company has complied in all material respects with the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Agreement 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

SD/- 
(Santoshkumar.K Pandey) 
Practicing Company Secretary 
C.P No. 5484
Date:
Place: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To, 
The Members, 
Viaan Industries Limited 
B-804, Hubtown Solaris, 8th Floor, 

N.S Phadke Road, Opp. Telli Galli, Near Regency hotel, 

Andheri (East) ,Mumbai ,Maharashtra ,400069 

We, Mr. Ripu Sudan Kundra, Managing Director and Mr. Darshit Indravardhan Shah, CFO & Executive 
Director of Viaan Industries Limited hereby certify that: 
1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the financial year 2017-18

and to the best of my knowledge and belief:
a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement that might be misleading with

respect to the statements made.
b. These financial statements and other financial information included in this report  present  a true  and

fair view of the Company’s affairs for the period presented in this report  and are in compliance with
current accounting standards,  applicable laws and regulations and full explanations has been given
for any material departure in compliance of Accounting Standards.

2. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct.
We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial
reporting.

1. We have disclosed to the Company’s Auditor and Audit Committee of the Company, all significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the
steps taken or proposed to be taken to rectify the deficiencies;

2. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
a. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed

suitably in the notes to the financial statements; and
b. That there were no Instances of significant fraud that involves management or other employees who

have a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 
c. We further declare that all Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed

compliance with the Code of Conduct for the current Financial Year.
By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Company has formed a Code of Conduct for the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management of the Company pursuant to Regulation 17(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the all the members of the 
Board of Directors and senior management have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct for the 
financial year 2017-18. 

By Order of the Board 
For Viaan Industries Limited 

SD/-  SD/- 
Ripu Sudan Kundra Darshit Indravardhan Shah 
Managing Director  Executive Director & CFO 
DIN: 01785303  DIN: 06614591  
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14.08.2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of   
Viaan Industries Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Viaan Industries Ltd (“the
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the Statement of Profit and loss,
the Cash flow statement for the year then ended including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

85 

internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.  

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion 

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2018, it’s Profit and cash flows for the
year then ended.

.  
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

9. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order 2016 (“The Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Order.

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (as amended); 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,(refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”).
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact the
standalone Financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no such amount required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company

For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No : 109389W 

SD/- 

PLACE : Mumbai        CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra 
DATE   : 23/05/2018  Partner 

M.No .131611
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ANNEXURE A TO AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph IX of our report of even date) 

1 Reporting on maintaining and verifying and disposing of fixed assets 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The Company does not have any immovable property, hence relevant clause is not
applicable to the Company.

2 Physical verification and Maintenance of records of inventories 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the physically verification of 
inventory is conducted at reasonable intervals by the management of the company and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. 

According to the information and explanation given to us the physical verification of 
inventory  by the company is reasonable.  

3 Loan given by the company 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account, the Company has not given any loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.  

4 Loan to Director and Investment by the Company 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any 
loans, guarantees and security, hence provision of section 185 and 186 are not applicable to the 
company.  

5 Deposits 

During the year under report, the company has not accepted any deposits as stated in section 
73 to 76. Hence clause 3(v) of the report are not applicable to the company. 

6 Cost Records 

The Company is engaged in the business of trading activity hence the central government has 
not specified maintenance of cost records. 

7 Statutory Dues 

a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanation given to us, the
company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
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provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, duty of 
custom, wealth tax, Income Tax and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities 
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as 31st March 2018 for a 
period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable. 

b) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us, no
disputed dues of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax, value
added tax, duty of custom, Income Tax and other statutory dues were payable during the year.

8 Default in repayment of dues 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted any 
loans from financial institution, bank, Government nor are there any dues to debenture 
holders. 

9 
Utilization of IPO and Further Public Offer 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised any 
funds by way of Initial Public Offer (IPO) or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
and terms loans hence the clause 3(xi) of the report are not applicable to the Company. 

10 Reporting of Fraud 

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

11 Managerial Remuneration 

According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief the company has paid the managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite 
mandated by the provision of section 197 read with schedule V of the Companies Act 2013 and 
due to inadequacy of profits, the remuneration is paid to the directors as follows: 
Ripu Sudan Kundra – Rs. 60,00,000/- 
Darshit Shah -             Rs. 21,00,000/-  

12 Nidhi Company 

This clasue 3(xii) of the report are not applicable to the Company. 

13 Related Party Transactions: 

According to the information and explanation given the company has disclosed all the 
transactions with the related parties in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act 2013 in note no. 7 to the ntoes to account and the details have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards; 

14 Private Placement or Preferential Issues 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has  made the 
preferential allotment or private placement of Equity Shares and fully convertible debentures 
during the year under review. The company has complied with the requirement of section 42 
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of the Companies Act 2013. The amount has been utilised for the purposes for which it was 
raised. 

15 Non Cash Transaction 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into 
any non cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

16 Register with RBI Act 1934 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be 
registered u/s. 45 IA of the RBI Act 1934. 

For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No: 109389W 

SD/- 

CA SANJEEV KUMAR CHOPRA 
PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 131611 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE  : 23/05/2018 
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ANNEXURE B TO AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph X (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Viaan Industries Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;  (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
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financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No: 109389W 

SD/- 

CA SANJEEV KUMAR CHOPRA 
PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 131611 

PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE  : 23/05/2018 
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 

Particulars Note No.  As at 31-03-2018  As at 31-03-2017 

 I. ASSETS  Standalone  Standalone 

A. Non-Current Assets 

 a. 
Property, Plant & 
Equipment 3 6,697,063 6,905,901 

 b. Capital Work-in-Progress 
 c. Investment Property 
 d. Financial Assets 

i. Investments 4 2,043,348 2,043,348 
ii. Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered
Good)

 e. 
Deferred Tax Assets 
(Net) 119,887 58,940 

 f. 
Other Non-Current 
Assets 5 2,799,400 645,000 

B. Current Assets 
 a. Inventories 6 99,508,015 4,202,592 
 b. Financial Assets 

i. Investments 7 5,725,000 9,725,000 
ii. Trade Receivables
(Unsecured, Considered
Good)

8 
420,163,614 182,018,593 

iii. Cash and Cash
Equivalents 9 1,374,766 820,236 

 c. Other Current Assets 10 85,975,454 95,041,446 

TOTAL ASSETS 624,406,547 301,461,056 

 II. EQUITY & LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

 a. Equity Share Capital 11 108,117,600 106,652,100 
 b. Retained Earning 12 74,612,784 23,168,737 

2 Liabilities 
A. Non-Current Liabilities 13 42,499,500 
 a. Financial Liabilities 

i. Borrowings
(Unsecured) from
Related Parties

14 
- 13,750,000 

ii. Trade Payables -
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 c. 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
(Net) - 

 d. 
Other Non-Current 
Liabilities - 

B. Current Liabilities 
 a. Financial Liabilities 

i. Borrowings from Banks
(Secured by Fixed
Deposit) - 
ii. Trade Payables 15 383,461,965 142,939,478 

 b. Other Current Liabilities 16 3,269,503 12,957,257 
 c. Provisions 17 12,445,195 1,993,484 

TOTAL EQUITY & 
LIABILITIES 624,406,547 301,461,056 

(0) 0 

III. 
Notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements 1-2 

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our 
report of even date 
For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES  For VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W SD/- SD/- 
SD/- 
CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra Darshit Shah        Ripu Sudan Kundra 

Partner        
(CFO/ Executive 
Director) (Managing Director) 

Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303  DIN:06614591 
Place   : Mumbai 
Date: 23/05/2018 
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STANDALONE PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2018 

Sr 
No. Particulars Notes 

For The Year ended on 
31/03/2018 

For The Year ended on 
31/03/2017 

Standalone Standalone 
REVENUE: 

I Revenue From 
Operations 

18 
1,040,190,926 406,214,337 

II Other Income 19 1,699,746 10,346,229 

III Total Revenue (I+II) 1,041,890,672 416,560,565 
IV EXPENSES: 

Cost of Materials 
Consumed 
Purchase of Stock-in-
Trade 

20 
860,011,448 355,259,092 

Changes in Inventories 
of Finished Goods, 
Work-in-Progress and 
Stock-in-Trade 21 (95,305,423) (4,202,592) 
Employee Benefit 
Expense 

22 
34,768,117 29,246,673 

Financial Costs 23 194,396 500,712 
Depreciation and 
Amortization Expense 

24 
3,512,175 2,786,798 

Other Administrative 
Expenses 

25 
224,988,010 31,967,607 

V Total Expenses (IV) 1,028,168,723 415,558,291 

VI 

Profit Before 
Exceptional and 
Extraordinary Items 
and Tax 

(III - IV) 13,721,949 1,002,275 

VII Exceptional Items - - 

VIII 
Profit Before 

Extraordinary Items 
and Tax (V - VI) 

13,721,949 1,002,275 

IX Extraordinary Items - 

X Profit Before Tax (VII 
- VIII)

13,721,949 1,002,275 

XI Tax Expense: 
(1) Current Tax 3,372,849 358,000 
Sort / (Excess) Tax 
Provisions For Earlier 
Years - 
(2) Deferred Tax (60,947) 11,164 
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XII 
Profit(Loss) For The 

Year From Continuing 
Operations 

(IX-X) 10,410,047 633,110 

XIII Profit/(Loss) From 
Discontinuing 
Operations - - 

XIV Tax Expense Of 
Discounting 
Operations - - 

XV 
Profit/(Loss) From 
Discontinuing 
Operations (XII - XIII) 

- - 

XVI Profit/(Loss) For The 
Year (XI + XIV) 

10,410,047 633,110 

XVII Earning Per Equity 
share: 

(1) Basic 0.10 0.01 
(2) Diluted 0.10 0.01 

Significant Accounting 
Policies 1-2

Notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements 
For SEKHRI KANODIA & 
ASSOCIATES  For Viaan Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W SD/- SD/- 
SD/- 
CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra  Darshit Shah   Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Partner        (CFO/ Executive Director)  (Managing Director) 
Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303  DIN:06614591  
Place   : Mumbai 
Date:23-05-2018 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH 2018-Standalone 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities  31/03/2018  31/03/2017 

Net Profit Before Tax As Per Profit And Loss and Extraordinary Items 1,37,21,949 10,02,275 

Adjustments For: 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 
Depreciation 34,65,955 27,05,237 

Less:- Extraordinary item 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,71,87,904 37,07,512 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (23,81,45,021) (10,18,24,125) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (9,53,05,423) (42,02,592) 

(Increase)/Decrease  in Other Non Currents Assets (21,54,400) (5,80,000) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans & Advance Asset 90,65,992 1,18,90,230 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (96,87,754) (39,98,009) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 24,05,22,487 7,80,04,895 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 1,04,51,711 13,68,084 

Operating Profit after Working Capital Changes (6,80,64,503) (1,56,34,005) 

Income Taxes Provision (33,72,849) (3,58,000) 

- 

Net Cash Flow From Before Exceptional & Extraordinary items (7,14,37,352) (1,59,92,005) 

Less:- Exceptional & Extraordinary Items - 

Net Cash From Operating Activity A (7,14,37,352) (1,59,92,005) 

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities 
Sale Of Investments 40,00,000 - 

Purchase of Fixed Assets (32,57,118) (70,04,250) 

Purchase  in Investmenst - (9,25,302) 

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities B 7,42,882 (79,29,552) 

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

Increase/Decrease of Unsecured Loans (1,37,50,000) 57,50,000 

Increase/ Decrease of Loans Repayment - - 
Proceeds from Issuance of Share Capital - - 

Proceeds from Issuance of Share Capital (premium) 8,49,99,000 - 

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities C 7,12,49,000 57,50,000 
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Total (A+B+C) 5,54,530 (1,81,71,557) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents: 5,54,530 (1,81,71,557) 
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at Beginning of the Year 8,20,236 1,89,91,796 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year 13,74,766 8,20,236 

- 

For SEKHRI KANODIA & 
ASSOCIATES  For Viaan Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W 

CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra  Darshit Shah  Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Partner        (CFO/ Executive Director)  (Managing Director) 
Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303  DIN:06614591  
Place   : Mumbai 
Date: 23-05-2018 
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Note I - Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts Forming Part of the Standalone Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2018 

COMPANY INFORMATION 
Viaan Industries Limited (The Company) is a Public Limited company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of The Companies Act 1956 (at present Companies Act 2013). The 
Company is into trading activities of commodities, electronics goods & development of mobile based 
games application and animated films which are sold in India and abroad during 2017-18. The Company 
has wholly owned subsidiary Company in Dubai (UAE) which is doing trading activities has earned 
substantial revenue and profit during 2017-18. 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on accrual 
basis of accounting and are in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and including Accounting Standards notified 
under Companies (Accounting Standard), Rules 2014 as amended from time to time. 

1.2 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affects the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of 
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Any revision to 
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods. Examples of 
such estimates includes future obligation with respect to employee benefits, income taxes, 
useful lives of fixed assets. 

1.3 Fixed assets and depreciation 

Tangible assets 

a. Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss ascertained, if any. The cost represents purchase price (net of
recoverable taxes) and all other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and
installation of the respective assets and also includes major improvements, if any. All
costs, direct or indirect, relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed assets and
bringing to its working condition for its intended use are capitalized and include
borrowing costs and adjustment arising from foreign exchange rate variations directly
attributable to construction or acquisition of fixed assets.

b. Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on Written Down Method at the rates
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, on useful life of the assets. In case
the asset is acquired/sold during the year or used part of the year the depreciation has
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been provided on a pro-rata basis with reference to the days of addition/put to use or 
disposal. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses thereon. An intangible assets is recognized where it is probable 
that future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and where its 
costs can be reliably measured. The Depreciable amount of intangible assets is allocated based on 
the estimates of the useful life of the assets not exceeding five years. 

Impairment of assets 
An assets is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An 
impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss A/c in the year in which assets is identified as 
impaired. The impairment loss is recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. 

1.4 Investments 

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 
classified as long term investment. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair 
value determined on an individual item basis. Long term investments are carried at cost. 
However provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than 
temporary in the value of the investment. 

1.5 Revenue recognition 

Income and expenditure is recognized and accounted for on accrual basis. Revenue is 
recognized to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized on 
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customer and when no 
significant uncertainty exists regarding realisaton of consideration. Sales are recorded net of 
sales returns, VAT, Cash and Trade discount. Revenue from rendering of services is 
recognized when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed. 

1.6 Foreign currency transactions 

The transactions of foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the 
date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated are translated at functional 
currency closing rates of exchange of reporting date. 

1.7 Inventories: 

a) Finished and semi-finished goods products and purchased by the company are carried at
lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any.
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b) Work-in-progress is carried at lower of cost plus conversion cost.

c) Stock of raw materials, stores, spare parts and packing materials are valued at lower of
cost less CENVAT credit/VAT availed or net realizable value.

d) Cost of Inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

1.8 Taxation 

 Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge/credit. Current tax is the 
amount of tax worked out on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in force and is on an estimate basis.  

Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being 
the difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and 
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. 

Deferred tax asset if any is recognised, only when there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

1.9 – Leases 

Finance lease 

Leases which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership of the leased item are capitalised at the inception of the leased term at the lower of 
the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease 
payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to 
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss account. 

Aleased asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset or the useful life 
is envisaged in SCH II of the companies Act, 2013 whichever is lower. 

Operating lease 

.  Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of 
the leased item, are classified as Operating Lease. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight line basis over the lease term. 
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1.10 Provision for Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimates in measurement are recognised when there is 
a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of 
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.   

1.11 Retirement Benefits 

Gratuity is payable to the employees who has completed five years of service at the time of 
resignation/super-annuation. None of the employees have completed five years of service. The 
provision of gratuity is made on estimate basis. 

1.12 Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized 
as part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowings costs are charged to revenue. 
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Schedules Forming Integral Part Of The Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 

Note No.3 

Head 

Gross Block Depreciation 

Net Block 
as on 

31.03.2018 

Net Block as 
on 1.04.2017 Rate of 

Dep. 

Opening 
Balance as 

on 1.04.2017 

Additions 
During The 

Year 

Closing 
balance as 

on 
31.03.2018 

Residual 
Value 

Opening 
Balance as 

on 
1.04.2017 

Additions For the 
year 

Closing 
balance 

as on 
31.03.201

8 

Car (Honda City ) 31.23% 395,000 - 395,000 - 136,141 - 80,842 216,983 178,017 258,859 
Computer 
Hardware 63.16% 4,992,017 381,958 5,373,975 19,098 1,811,459 79,495 2,008,840 3,872,635 1,501,340 3,180,558 
Furniture & 
Fixtures 25.89% 1,673,725 572,185 2,245,910 28,609 682,434 26,381 185,434 885,671 1,360,239 716,239 
Intangible Fixed 
Assets 25.00% 1,388,718 2,082,126 3,470,844 104,106 121,799 305,032 316,730 476,739 2,994,105 1,266,919 
Office 
Equipements 45.07% 1,604,716 121,725 1,726,441 6,086 603,679 24,815 451,167 1,063,079 663,362 1,001,037 
Leasehold 
Improvements 0% 219,790 2,866,317 3,086,107 - 12,553 3,073,554 - 3,086,107 - 207,237 

Grand Total    (A) 10,273,966 3,157,994 13,212,170 157,900 3,368,065 435,723 3,030,231 6,515,107 6,697,063 6,630,849 
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Note 
No. 4 Non Current Investment  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Amount  Amount 

Non-Trade Investments (Valued 
at cost) 

1 Viaan Industries DMCC 1,838,069 1,838,069 
2 Investments in Subsidiary 

Viaan Industries Ltd. (Dubai) 205,279 205,279 
Total  -  2,043,348  -  2,043,348 

Long Term Loans and Advances  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 
Sr No. Particulars 

I) Capital Assets 
a) Secured, Considered Good :
b) Unsecured, Considered Good :
c) Doubtful 

II) Security Deposit 
a) Secured, Considered Good :

 Earnest Money Deposit 
 Other Deposit 

b) Unsecured, Considered Good :
c) Doubtful 

III) Loans & Advances to related 
parties 

IV) Other Loans & Advances 

Total  - -  - - 

Note 
No. 5 Other Non Current Assets 

 As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars 

1 (i) Long-term Trade Receivables
(including trade receivables on
deferred credit terms);
(ii) Others (specify nature);
(iii) Long term Trade Receivables,
shall be sub-classified as:
(A) (a) Secured, considered good;
(B) Unsecured, considered good;

 Baluwala Builders -Andheri  119,400  600,000 
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Office Deposit 
 Deposite M-Vat (Refundable)  25,000 
 Deposit Office Kolkata  20,000 

Kapil Varyani (Jaipur Rent 
Deposit)  180,000 

V Cube Ventures Pvt Ltd 
(Andheri Rent Deposit)  2,500,000 

(C) Doubtful.
(b) Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts shall be disclosed
under the relevant heads
separately.
(c) Debts due by directors or other
officers of the company or any of
them either severally or jointly
with any other person or debts
due by firms or private
companies respectively in which
any director is a partner or a
director or a member should be
separately stated

Total  2,799,400  -  645,000 

Note 
No. 6 Inventories  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Raw Material - 
2 Work-in-Progress 51,003,188 - 
3 Finished Goods 4,202,592 
4 Stock-in-Trade 48,504,827 - 
5 Stores & Spares - 
6 Loose Tools - 
7 Other With Job Worker - 
8 Goods-in-transit - 

Total  99,508,015  4,202,592 
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Note 
No. 7 Current Investment  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars 

 No.of Shares  Amount 

1 

Investment in Equity Unquoted 

a) Jackpot Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 1,220 1,220,000 

b) Touchwin Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 2,725 2,725,000 
c) Gurukripa Bio Fertilizer Pvt. Ltd. - 4,000,000 

d) Touchwin Dealcom Pvt. Ltd. 1,330 1,330,000 

e) Newedge Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 450 450,000 
2 Investment in Preference Shares; 
3 Investments in Government or trust 

securities; 

4 Investments in debentures or bonds; 
5 Investments in Mutual Funds; 
6 Investments in partnership firms; 
7 Other investments (specify nature). 

Total 5,725 9,725,000 

Note 
No. 8 Trade Recievables  As on 31st 

March 2018 
 As on 31st 
March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

I Outstanding For Less Than Six Months 
(a) Unsecured, Considered Good From Related Parties 

b) Unsecured, Considered Good - - 
Others 420,163,614 182,018,590 

II Outstanding For More Than Six Months 

Total 420,163,614 182,018,590 
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Note 
No. 9 Cash & Cash Equivalent  As on 31st 

March 2018 
 As on 31st 
March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Bank Balance 
 Axis Bank A/c No. 915020049574158 981,270 512,714 
 HDFC Bank Ltd A/c No. 05420340000573 5,795 5,795 
 Kotak Mahindra Bank A/c No 9412395575 13,847 155,699 
 Yes Bank A/c No. 018983900005033 567 755 
 Yes Bank Retail Banking 001060800000369 753 753 
 Axis Bank A/c No :- 917020074099299 2,852 
 Chasebid Kotak Bank A/c No.9412641887 111,830 
 HDFC Bank Ltd A/c 50200030165099 50,000 
 IPL Kotak Bank A/c No.9412641849 42,704 

- - 

Total 1,209,620 675,717 

- 
2  Cash-in-Hand 

 Cash 149,151 139,132 
 Petty Cash 15,906 5,387 
Production Petty Cash 90 

 Total 165,147 144,519 

Total (1+2) 1,374,766 820,236 
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Note 
No. 10 Other Current Assets  As on 31st 

March 2018 
 As on 31st 
March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

2 Others 
a) Balance with Revenue Authorities 12,530,912 1,420,732 
b) Short Terms Loans and Advances - 

11,223,198 
c) Advance To Debtors 33,265,694 - 
d) Advances against Property Purchase 35,876,500 37,476,500 
e) Interest Recievable 3,647,095 2,892,350 
f) Other Advances 239,284 42,021,167 
g) Staff Loans - 7,500
h). Misc Expenditures Not w/off 415,969 - 

Total 85,975,454 95,041,446 

Note 
No. 11 Share Capital  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  No of Shares  Amount  No of 
Shares  Amount 

1 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL 
11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each. 

110,000,000 
110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000 

(11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each) 

Total 110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000 

2 ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP 
CAPITAL 
10,66,52,100 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each, Fully 106,652,100 106,652,100 35,550,700 35,550,700 
Issued during the year  1,465,500 1,465,500 
(14,65,500 Equity Shares of Rs.1/-
each,Fully paid-up) 
(Being Bonus shared issued during 
the year at 2 for 1) - - 71,101,400 71,101,400 

Total 108,117,600 108,117,600 106,652,100 106,652,100 
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Reconciliation Of The Number Of Share Outstanding At The Beginning And At The End Of The 
Year 

Note 
No. 
11A Share Capital 

 As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Equity Shares 
 No.of Shares  Amount 

 No.of Shares  Amount 

1 At the beginning of the year 106,652,100 106,652,100 3,555,070 30,550,700 
Subdivided Equity Shares of Rs.1/- 
each (Rs.10 each) 106,652,100 106,652,100 35,550,700 35,550,700 

2 Add: Issued during the period 1,465,500 1,465,500 
Add: Bonus Shares Issued during the 
period 71,101,400 71,101,400 

Outstanding at the end of the year 108,117,600 108,117,600 106,652,100 106,652,100 

Not
e 
No. 
11B Share Capital 

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares 
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1/- per 
share. 

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in 

Indian Rupees. The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year. 
As per the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 
the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in the event of liquidation of the Company. 
However no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in propotion to the number 
of equity shares held by shareholders. 

During the year the Company has issued 1465500 Equity Shares of Rs.1 each fully at  a premium of Rs.28/- 
each fully paid. 

(During  the previous year the Company has issued the Bonus Shares in the ratio 2:1 (Two Equity shares of 
Rs.1/- each fully paid for every one equity share held) The Company Company has also subdivided its 
equity of Rs.10/- each into Rs.1 each fully paid shares. All these shares rank paripassu.) 
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Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares of the 
Company 

Not
e 

No. 
11C Share Capital  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Name of Shareholder  No.of Shares  % of Holding  No.of Shares 

 % of 
Holding 

1 Ripusudan Kundra 
2,75,43,900 25.48 27,468,900 25.76 

2 Shilpa Shetty Kundra 
2,74,93,900 25.43 27,468,900 25.76 

As per the record of the Company, including it's register of members. 
Note 

No. 12 Reserves and Surplus  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Share Premium Account 
Opening Balance 23,898,600 95,000,000 
(+) Current Year Transfer 41,034,000 - 
(-) Written Back in Current Period - - 
(-) Bonus Issued in Current Period 71,101,400 
Closing Balance 64,932,600 23,898,600 

2 Surplus (Profit & Loss Account) 9,680,184 (729,863) 
Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year (729,863) (1,362,974) 
Add: Profit For The Period 10,410,047 633,110 
Less : Goodwill/Capital Reserve on Consolidation 

- 
Total  74,612,784  23,168,737 
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Note 
No. 13 Non-Current Liabilities  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Bonds / Debentures 42,499,500 - 
(Refer Note 9 to Notes to Account) 

2 Other Loans & Advances - 

Total 42,499,500 - 

Note 
No. 14 Short Term Borrowings As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

Loan Repayable on Demand - 
- From Bank - 
- From Other Parties - 
Loans & Advances From Related Parties - 
Shilpa Shetty Kundra 13,750,000 

Total - 13,750,000 

Note 
No. 15 Trades Payable  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

Others 383,461,964 142,939,478 
Due To MSME - 

Total 383,461,964 142,939,478 
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Note 
No. 16 Other Current Liabilities  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

Other Current Liabilities 3,269,504 12,957,257 

Total 3,269,504 12,957,257 

Note 
No. 17 Short Term Provisions  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

Provision for Employee Benefit 3,276,570 379,068 
Others Provisions 9,168,625 1,614,420 

Total 12,445,195 1,993,488 

Note No. 
18 Revenue from Operations  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1  Sales Goods 719,142,602 392,760,537 
Less: Goods Return - 

2  Sales of Services 307,882,796 10,200,000 
3 Export Sales 13,165,528 

a) Marketing Income ( Abroad) 3,253,800 

Total 1,040,190,926 406,214,337 

Note No. 
19 Other Income  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Other Receipts: 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation A/c 1,474,567 
Freight on Sales - 
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1,816 
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Interest Received on Loan 1,564,745 3,242,000 
Misc Income 113,999 558 
Round Off 444 88 
Sundry Creditors Balance Write Back 486 5,627,199 
Testing Charges 1,950 
Service Chgs on BN Distributors Comm. 18,122 

Total 1,699,746 10,346,229 

Note 
No. 20 Cost of Material Consumed  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1) 

PURCHASES OF RAW MATERIALS 
AND STORES 

Purchases  Goods 775,544,468 315,814,034 
Loss on Trading of Goods 25,460,307 
Less: Goods Return - (188,102) 
Purchase Import 4,219,000 
Purchase Delhi 8,407,492 
Less: Goods Return - 
Cost of Services 82,733,024 

858,277,492 353,712,731 

2) DIRECT/PRODUCTIONS EXPENSES 
Custom Duty 19,500 109,587 
Freight on Purchase 473,435 513,423 
Labour Charges 500 923,351 
Distributor Commission 1,240,521 

1,733,956 1,546,361 

Total (1+2) 860,011,448 355,259,092 
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Note No. 
21 Change in Inventories  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Opening Stock 4,202,592 
2 Closing Stock 99,508,015 4,202,592 

Total (95,305,423) (4,202,592) 

Note No. 
22 Employement Benefit Expenses  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Salaries And Wages 22,344,301 25,480,324 
2 Employers ESIC Contribution 158,969 50,837 
3 Insurance 86,859 
4 PF Employers Contribution 384,207 253,076 
5 PF Insurance Scheme 5,448 14,769 
6 Director Remuneration 8,100,000 3,016,301 
7 Staff Group Insurance - 
8 Staff Welfare 390,350 344,508 
9 Maharashtra Labour Welfare 3,936 
10 Bonus Expense 2,711,416 
11 Gratuity expense 669,490 

Total 34,768,117 29,246,673 

Note No. 
23 Finance Cost  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Interest Paid on Unsecured Loan 194,396 500,712 

Total 194,396 500,712 
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Note No. 
24 Depreciation & Amortised Cost  For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
 For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Standalone  Standalone 

1 Depreciation 3,465,955 2,705,237 
2 Roc Filling Fee W/off 46,220 81,561 
3 Preliminary Exp W/off - - 

Total 3,512,175 2,786,798 

Note No. 
25 Other Administrative Expenses For The Year Ended on 31/03/2018 

For The Year 
Ended on 
31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars Standalone Standalone 

1 Payment to Auditors 
Auditors Remuneration 170,000 160,900 
Other Services 460,000 68,200 

Total(1) 630,000 229,100 

2 Listing & Depositary Expenses 
Annual Fees 126,500 27,480 
E-Voting Charges 3,000 - 
Listing Fees 610,000 229,000 
Processing Fees 22,650 148,958 

Total(2) 762,150 405,438 

3 Other Administrative Expenses 

Professional & Legal fees 31,953,424 4,951,110 
Marketing & Business Promotion 150,245,470 5,338,462 
Rent Rates & Taxes 5,222,723 1,878,118 
Telecommunication Expense 14,528,173 490,258 
Administrative Cost & Indirect Charges 12,311,675 1,726,643 
Other Expenditures 1,984,340 
Sundry Balance W/off 7,350,056 
Interest Expenses 34,379 
Shooting Exp 281,731 
Octroi & Fright Charges 1,328,278 
Finance Charges 1,658,875 
Brokerage & Commission 1,298,715 
Testing Charges 1,644,888 
Travelling Expenses 2,174,938 
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Donation 625,000 
Office Expenses 933,690 
Board Exp 333,100 
Warehousing Charges 867,000 
Warranty Maintenance Charges 681,644 
Website & Software Expenses 783,485 
Electricity Charges 592,240 
Administrative Exp 2,566,308 
Conveyance & Petrol Exp 698,597 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 320,958 
Membership & Subscription Fees 113,151 
App Registration Fees 11,501 

Total(3) 223,595,860 31,333,070 

Total (1+2+3) 224,988,010 31,967,607 
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2. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.1 Earnings in Foreign Currency                      Rs. 1,31,65,228/-

2.2 Expenditure in Foreign Currency  Rs.    78,14,140/-

2.3 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006(MSMED Act)
are provided as under for the year to the extent the Company has received intimation from the 
suppliers regarding the status under the Act. 

The Company has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status under Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure, if any, required under 
the said Act have not been made. 

2.4 Earnings Per Share 

Calculation of Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-20) 
issued by the ICAI. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss 
for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period.  

Calculation of Earnings Per Share (EPS) in accordance with the Accounting Standard. 

  As at 31-03-2018  As at 31-03-2017 

Numerator 
Net profit(loss) after Tax & Extraordinary items      1,04,10,047  6,33,110 

Denominator 
Weighted Average no. of shares outstanding  10,72,06,179  10,66,52,100 
Earnings Per Share  0.10  0.03 
Diluted Earning Per Shares  0.10  0.03 

2.5 Auditors Remuneration 

As at 31.03.2018    As at 31.03.2017 
Audit Fees  1,70,000/-   1,60,900/- 
Other Services         5,52,000 /-         68,200/- 

  ------------------         ---------------- 
        7,22,000           2,31,600/- 
  ============  ========== 
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2.6 In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, all current assets, 
loans and advances have a value, on realization, in the ordinary course of business equal to 
the amount at which these are stated, all known liabilities are provided for, at their full 
values unless otherwise stated, and potential liabilities are recognized to the extent they are 
deemed likely to crystallize.  

2.7 There are no contingent liabilities in the company. 

2.8 Related Party Disclosure: 

a) List of Related Parties and Relationships

 Name of the Party Relation 
1. Nandanadan Mishra Independent Director 
2. Pradeep Shah Independent Director (Upto June 2017) 
3. Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa Independent Director 
4. Ripu Sudan Kundra Director & CEO 
5. Darshit Shah Director & CFO 
6. Shilpa Shetty Kundra Director 
7. Essential Bulk Commodities Pvt

Ltd
Common Director 

8. Satyug Gold Pvt.Ltd. Common Director 
9. Cinemation Media works Private

Limited
Common Director 

10. Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria Director 
11. Kiran  Jadhav Company Secretary 

b) Transaction with related parties transactions:

Name of the Party Transactions Amount 

1. Nandanandan
Mishra

Board Sitting Fees  Rs.  150,000/- 

2. Pradeep Shah Board Sitting Fees  Rs.   30,000/- 
3. Mahinder Wadhwa Board Sitting Fees  Rs. 150,000/- 
4. Satyendra

Mohanlal Sarupria
Board Sitting fees   Rs.       50,000/- 

5. Ripu Sudan 
Kundra

Remuneration 
Reimbursement 
Loan Received during the year 
Loan Repaid during the year 
Advance for Expenses 
Interest Paid 

 Rs. 60,00,000/- 
 Rs. 30,03,315/- 
 Rs. 20,00,000/- 
 Rs. 20,00,000/- 
 Rs.   4,72,307/- 
 Rs.     10,762/- 

6. Darshit Shah Remuneration  
Reimbursement 

 Rs. 21,00,000/- 
 Rs. 18,37,900/- 
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7. Shilpa Shetty 
Kundra

Loan Received during the year 
Loan Repaid during the year 
Interest paid  
Reimbursement 

 Rs. 6,00,000/- 
 Rs.1,43,50,000/- 
 Rs.  1,83,634/- 
 Rs.  38,89,677/- 

8. Satyug Gold 
Pvt.Ltd.

Purchases 
Sales 

 Rs.  30,000/- 
 Rs.  59,200/- 

9. Cinemation Media
works Private
limited

Advance paid  Rs.  27,70,400/- 

10. Kiran Jadhav Professional fees   Rs.  15,000/- 
11. Essential Bulk 

Commodities
Private Limited

Reimbursement of Expenses 
Purchase of Trademark 

  Rs.     100,889/- 
  Rs.  13,85,000/- 

2.9 The company has issued 14, 65,500 Fully Convertible Debantures @ Rs.29 /- per debenture. 
The debentures are to be converted into Equity share after one year from the date of issue of 
Debentures 

2.10 Previous year’s figure have been regrouped and rearranged to make it comparable with the 
current year’s figures. Figures in bracket represent the figures pertains to previous year. 

For Sekhri Kanodia & Associates  For Viaan Industries Limited 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
FRN No. 109389W 

CA SANJEEV KUMAR CHOPRA  Ripu Sudan Kundra       Darshit Shah 
Partner         Managing Director  CFO & Executive Director 
M.NO.131611   DIN:01785303         DIN:06614591 

  Place : Mumbai 

Date:23-05-2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To the Members of  
VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED  

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Viaan Industries
Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary (the Holding
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”)  which comprises the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss,
the Consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

2. The Holding Company’s Board of  Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position,
Consolidated financial performance and Consolidated cash flows of the group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
The respective Board of Directors of the company included in the group are responsible for
maintainance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the directors of holding company,as
aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

4. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
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and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  

6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained by us and audit evidence obtained by other
auditors in terms of their reports  is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion 

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the group as at March 31, 2018,
and their consolidated Profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

 Other matters 

We did not audit the financial statements of the foreign  subsidiary company whose financial statements 
reflect  total assets of Rs.  38,04,32,859, /- as on 31st March, 2018 and revenue of Rs.164,53,49,274/- and net 
cash flows  amounting to Rs. 9,94,329/- and for the year ended on that date, as considered in consolidated 
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of 
Rs. 26,79,26,947/- for the year ended 31st March 2018 as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors and whose reports has been 
furnished to us by the management and  our opinion on consolidated financial statements,in so far it 
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and report in terms of sub 
section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the act in so far as it relates to the subsidiary is solely based on the 
reports of other auditors.Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to 
our report of other auditors and financial statements certified by the management. 
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

9. The provisions as required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order 2016 (“The Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act 2013, are not applicable to consolidated Financial Statement.

10. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of aforesaid
consolidated financial statements has been kept so far as it appears  from our examination of
those books and reports of other auditor.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the Director’s of the Holding Company’s
as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, none of the
directors of the holding company is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls of holding company over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,(refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A”).

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
other report of other auditor:

i. There are no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated  Financial
statements of the Group.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding company.

For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
Firm Registration No : 109389W 

CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra 
PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 131611 

PLACE : Mumbai 
DATE   :23-05-2018 
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ANNEXURE A TO AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph X (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of 

our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Viaan Industries
Limited  (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

6. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SEKHRI KANODIA & ASSOCIATES 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Firm Registration No: 109389W 

CA SANJEEV KUMAR CHOPRA 
PARTNER 
MEMBERSHIP NO.131611 
PLACE: Mumbai 
DATE  :23-05-2018 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2018 

Particulars 
Note 
No.  As at 31-03-2018  As at 31-03-2017 

 I. ASSETS  Consolidated  Consolidated 

A. Non-Current Assets 
 a. Property, Plant & Equipment 3 6,697,063 6,905,901 
 b. Capital Work-in-Progress - - 
 c. Investment Property - - 
 d. Financial Assets - - 

i. Investments 4 - - 
ii. Trade Receivables (Unsecured,
Considered Good) - - 

 e. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 119,887 58,940 
 f. Other Non-Current Assets 5 2,799,400 645,000 

- - 
B. Current Assets - - 
 a. Inventories 6 99,508,015 4,202,592 
 b. Financial Assets - - 

i. Investments 7 5,725,000 9,725,000 

ii. Trade Receivables (Unsecured,
Considered Good)

8 
799,309,315 624,026,367 

iii. Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 2,369,095 828,213 
 c. Other Current Assets 10 86,268,283 95,146,938 

 - 
TOTAL ASSETS  1,002,796,058  741,538,951 

II. EQUITY & LIABILITIES Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Equity 
 a. Equity Share Capital 11 108,117,600 106,652,100 
 b. Retained Earning 12 449,225,183 129,510,625 

- 
2 Liabilities - 

A. Non-Current Liabilities 13 42,499,500 - 
 a. Financial Liabilities - 

i. Borrowings (Unsecured) from
Related Parties

14 
- 13,750,000 

ii. Trade Payables - - 
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 c. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - 
 d. Other Non-Current Liabilities - - 

- - 
B. Current Liabilities - - 
 a. Financial Liabilities - - 

i. Borrowings from Banks (Secured
by Fixed Deposit) - - 
ii. Trade Payables 15 386,522,549 476,143,718 

 b. Other Current Liabilities 16 3,986,030 13,489,023 
 c. Provisions 17 12,445,195 1,993,485 

- 
- 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 1,002,796,057 741,538,951 

(0) (0) 
III. Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-2 

For SEKHRI KANODIA & 
ASSOCIATES  For Viaan Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W 

CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra  Darshit Shah  Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Partner         (Executive Director/CFO) (Managing Director) 
Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303   DIN:06614591  
Place   : Mumbai 
Date:23-05-2018 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2018 

Sr No. Particulars Notes 
For The Year ended on 31/03/2018 

For The Year 
ended on 
31/03/2017 

Standalone Dubai Consolidated Consolidated 

REVENUE: 
I Revenue From Operations 18 1,040,190,926 1,645,349,274 2,685,540,200 1,346,907,412 
II Other Income 19 1,699,746 7,709,334 9,409,080 10,368,725 

III Total Revenue (I+II) 1,041,890,672 1,653,058,607 2,694,949,280 1,357,276,137 

IV EXPENSES: 
Cost of Materials Consumed 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 20 860,011,448 1,373,890,364 2,233,901,812 1,187,148,725 
Changes in Inventories of 
Finished Goods, Work-in-
Progress and Stock-in-Trade 

21 

(95,305,423) - (95,305,423) (4,202,592) 
Employee Benefit Expense 22 34,768,117 1,504,652 36,272,769 30,024,403 
Financial Costs 23 194,396 - 194,396 500,712 
Depreciation and 
Amortization Expense 

24 
3,512,175 - 3,512,175 3,201,636 

Other Administrative 
Expenses 

25 
224,988,010 9,736,644 234,724,654 33,187,739 

V Total Expenses (IV) 1,028,168,723 1,385,131,660 2,413,300,383 1,249,860,622 

VI 
Profit Before Exceptional 
and Extraordinary Items 

and Tax 
(III - IV)  13,721,949 267,926,947 281,648,896 107,415,515 

VII Exceptional Items 
- - - 

VIII Profit Before Extraordinary 
Items and Tax (V - VI)  13,721,949 267,926,947 281,648,896 107,415,515 

IX Extraordinary Items 
- - 

X Profit Before Tax (VII - 
VIII) 13,721,949 267,926,947 281,648,896 107,415,515 

XI Tax Expense: 
(1) Current Tax

3,372,849 3,372,849 358,000 
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Sort / (Excess) Tax 
Provisions For Earlier Years - - - 
(2) Deferred Tax

(60,947) (60,947) 11,164 

XII 
Profit(Loss) For The Year 
From Continuing 
Operations 

(IX-X) 

10,410,047 267,926,947 278,336,994 107,046,351 

XIII Profit/(Loss) From 
Discontinuing Operations - - - 

XIV Tax Expense Of Discounting 
Operations - - - 

XV 
Profit/(Loss) From 
Discontinuing Operations 
(XII - XIII) - - - 

XVI Profit/(Loss) For The Year 
(XI + XIV) 10,410,047 267,926,947 278,336,994 107,046,351 

XVII Earning Per Equity share: 
(1) Basic 0.10 2.60 1.00 
(2) Diluted 0.10 2.60 1.00 

Significant Accounting Policies 1-2 
Notes are an integral part of the financial 
statements 
As per our report of even date. 

For SEKHRI KANODIA & 
ASSOCIATES  For Viaan Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W 

CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra  Darshit Shah  Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Partner         (Executive Director/CFO) (Managing Director) 
Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303   DIN:06614591  
Place   : Mumbai 
Date:23-05-2018 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH 2018-Consolidated 

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities  31/03/2018  31/03/2017 
Net Profit Before Tax As Per Profit And Loss and 
Extraordinary Items 28,16,48,896 10,02,275 
Adjustments For: 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 

Depreciation 34,65,955 27,05,237 
Less:- Extraordinary item 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 28,51,14,851 37,07,512 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (17,52,82,948) (10,18,24,125) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (9,53,05,423) (42,02,592) 

(Increase)/Decrease  in Other Non Currents Assets (21,54,400) (5,80,000) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans & Advance Asset 88,78,655 1,18,90,230 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (91,51,451) (39,98,009) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (8,96,21,169) 7,80,04,895 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 1,04,51,710 13,68,084 

Operating Profit after Working Capital Changes (6,70,70,174) (1,56,34,005) 

Income Taxes Provision (33,72,849) (3,58,000) 

- 
Net Cash Flow From Before Exceptional & Extraordinary 
items  (7,04,43,023) (1,59,92,005) 

Less:- Exceptional & Extraordinary Items - - 

Net Cash From Operating Activity 
A (7,04,43,023) (1,59,92,005) 

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities 

Sale Of Investments 40,00,000 - 
Purchase of Fixed Assets 
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(32,57,118) (70,04,250) 

Purchase  in Investmenst - (9,25,302) 

Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities B 7,42,882 (79,29,552) 

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities 

Increase/Decrease of Unsecured Loans (1,37,50,000) 57,50,000 

Increase/ Decrease of Loans Repayment - - 

Proceeds from Issuance of Share Capital - - 

Proceeds from Issuance of Share Capital (premium) 8,49,99,000 - 

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities C 7,12,49,000 57,50,000 

Total (A+B+C) 15,48,859 (1,81,71,557) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents: 15,48,859 (1,81,71,557) 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at Beginning of the Year 8,20,236 1,89,91,796 

Cash & Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year 23,69,095 8,20,236 

- 

For SEKHRI KANODIA & 
ASSOCIATES  For Viaan Industries Limited 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:109389W 

CA Sanjeev Kumar Chopra  Darshit Shah  Ripu Sudan Kundra 
Partner         (Executive Director/CFO) (Managing Director) 
Membership No.:131611  DIN:01785303   DIN:06614591  
Place   : Mumbai 
Date:23-05-2018 
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 

GROUP INFORMATION 

Viaan Industires Limited (Holding Company) and Viaan Industries DMCC (Subsidiary Company) are 
engaged in the business of trading of consumer goods. Viaan Industries Limited (The Company) is a 
Public Limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of The Companies Act 
1956 (at present Companies Act 2013). The Company is into trading activities of commodities, electronics 
goods & development of mobile based games application and animated films which are sold in India and 
abroad during 2017-18. The Company has wholly owned subsidiary Company in Dubai (UAE) which is 
doing trading activities has earned substantial revenue and profit during 2017-18. 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of the Company (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiary 
companies (together ‘the Group’) have been prepared in accordance with the holding company’s 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in india, as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2014 as 
amended from time to time. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under 
the historical cost convention. 
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The financial statements of subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn upto the 
same reporting dates as that of the Parent Company, namely 31 March 2018. 

1.2. Principle of Consolidation. 

(a) The financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries are combined on line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of like items of the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, after elimination of intra group balances, intra group transactions and
unrealised profits or losses on balances remaining within the Group. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

(b) The difference between the cost of investment in the subsidiaries, and the share of equity in
the subsidiaries, on acquisition date, is recognized in the financial statements as goodwill or
capital reserve, as the case may be.

(c) The audited financial results of the foreign subsidiary has been prepared in accordance with
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principal of the country of incorporation.

1.3. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian accounting standards in India 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affects the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods. Examples of such estimates 
includes future obligation with respect to employee benefits, income taxes, useful lives of fixed 
assets. 

1.4. Fixed Asset and Depreciation 

Tangible assets 

a) Fixed assets are stated at the cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss ascertained, if any. The cost represents purchase price (net of recoverable
taxes) and all other incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation of the
respective assets and also includes major improvements, if any. All costs, direct or indirect,
relating to the acquisition and installation of fixed assets and bringing to its working
condition for its intended use are capitalized and include borrowing costs and adjustment
arising from foreign exchange rate variations directly attributable to construction or
acquisition of fixed assets in case of holding company.

b) In case of Holding Company, Depreciation on Fixed Assets has been provided on Written
Down Method at the rates prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, on useful life
of the assets. In case the asset is acquired/sold during the year or used part of the year the
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depreciation has been provided on a pro-rata basis with reference to the days of addition/put 
to use or disposal. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition, less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses thereon. An intangible assets is recognized where it is probable 
that future economic benefits attributable to the assets will flow to the enterprise and where its 
costs can be reliably measured. The Depreciable amount of intangible assets is allocated based on 
the estimates of the useful life of the assets not exceeding five years. 

Impairment of assets 

An assets is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An 
impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss A/c in the year in which assets is identified as 
impaired. The impairment loss is recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has 
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount. 

1.5. Investments 

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are 
classified as long term investment. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value 
determined on an individual item basis. Long term investments are carried at cost. However 
provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the 
value of the investment. 

1.6. Revenue recognition 

Income and expenditure is recognized and accounted for on accrual basis. Revenue is recognized 
to the extent that is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer and when no significant uncertainty exists 
regarding realization of consideration. Sales are recorded net of sales returns, VAT, GST,Cash 
and Trade discount. Revenue from rendering of services is recognized when the performance of 
agreed contractual task has been completed. 

1.7. Foreign Currency Transactions 

The transactions of foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated are translated at functional currency closing 
rates of exchange of reporting date. 

1.8. Inventories 

a) Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any.

b) Work-in-progress is carried at lower of cost plus conversion cost.
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c) Stock of raw materials, stores, spare parts and packing materials are valued at cost less
CENVAT credit/VAT availed or net realizable value.

d) Cost of Inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

1.9. Taxation 

Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge/credit.Current tax is the amount 
of tax worked out on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in force and is on an estimate basis.  

Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being the 
difference between taxable incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are 
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. 

Deferred tax asset if any is recognised, only when there is a virtual certainty that sufficient future 
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised 

1.10. Leases 

Finance lease 

Leases which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased item are capitalised at the inception of the leased term at the lower of the 
fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss account. 

In case of Holding Company leased asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the useful life of 
the asset or the useful life s envisaged in SCH II of the companies Act, 2013 whichever is lower. 

Operating lease 

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the 
leased item, are classified as Operating Lease. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight line basis over the lease term. 

1.11. Provision for Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimates in measurement are recognised when there is a 
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of 
resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to accounts. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements 
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1.12. Retirement Benefits 

Gratuity is payable to the employees who has completed five years of service at the time of 
resignation/super-annuation. None of the employees have completed five years of service. The 
provision of gratuity is made on estimate basis. 

1.13. Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized 
as part of the cost of such assets. All other borrowings costs are charged to revenue. 
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Schedules Forming Integral Part Of Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 
Note No.3 

Head 

Gross Block Depreciation 
Net 

Block as 
on 

31.03.201
8 

Net 
Block as 

on 
1.04.2017 

Rate of 
Dep. 

Opening 
Balance as 

on 1.04.2017 

Additions 
During The 

Year 

Closing 
balance as 

on 
31.03.2018 

Residual 
Value 

Opening 
Balance 

as on 
1.04.2017 

Additio
ns 

For the 
year  

Closing 
balance as 

on 
31.03.2018 

Car (Honda City ) 31.23% 395,000 - 395,000 - 136,141 - 80,842 216,983 178,017 258,859 

Computer Hardware 63.16% 4,992,017 381,958 5,373,975 19,098 1,811,459 79,495 2,008,840 3,872,635 1,501,340 3,180,558 

Furniture & Fixtures 25.89% 1,673,725 572,185 2,245,910 28,609 682,434 26,381 185,434 885,671 1,360,239 716,239 
Intangible Fixed 
Assets 25.00% 1,388,718 2,082,126 3,470,844 104,106 121,799 305,032 316,730 476,739 2,994,105 1,266,919 

Office Equipements 45.07% 1,604,716 121,725 1,726,441 6,086 603,679 24,815 451,167 1,063,079 663,362 1,001,037 

Leasehold 
Improvements 0% 219,790 2,866,317 3,086,107 - 12,553 

3,073,55
4 - 3,086,107 - 207,237 

Grand Total    (A) 10,273,966 3,157,994 13,212,170 157,900 3,368,065 435,723 3,030,231 6,515,107 6,697,063 6,630,849 
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Note 
No. 4 Non Current Investment  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars  Number  Amount  Number  Amount 

Non-Trade Investments (Valued at cost) 

1 Viaan Industries DMCC 1,838,069 1,838,069 
2 Investments in Subsidiary 

Viaan Industries Ltd. (Dubai) 205,279 205,279 
Total - 2,043,348 - 2,043,348 

Long Term Loans and Advances  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 
Sr 

No. Particulars 

I) Capital Assets 
a) Secured, Considered Good :
b) Unsecured, Considered Good :
c) Doubtful 

II) Security Deposit 
a) Secured, Considered Good :

 Earnest Money Deposit 
 Other Deposit 

b) Unsecured, Considered Good :
c) Doubtful 

III) Loans & Advances to related parties 

IV) Other Loans & Advances 

Total  - -  - - 

Note 
No. 5 Other Non Current Assets  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars  Amount  Amount 

1 (i) Long-term Trade Receivables (including
trade receivables on deferred credit terms);
(ii) Others (specify nature);
(iii) Long term Trade Receivables, shall be
sub-classified as:
(A) (a) Secured, considered good;
(B) Unsecured, considered good;

 Baluwala Builders -Andheri Office 119,400 600,000 
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Deposit 
 Deposite M-Vat (Refundable) 25,000 
 Deposit Office Kolkata 20,000 

Kapil Varyani (Jaipur Rent Deposit) 180,000 
V Cube Ventures Pvt Ltd (Andheri Rent 
Deposit) 2,500,000 

(C) Doubtful.
(b) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
shall be disclosed under the relevant heads
separately.
(c) Debts due by directors or other officers of
the company or any of them either severally
or jointly with any other person or debts due
by firms or private companies respectively in
which any director is a partner or a director or
a member should be separately stated

Total 2,799,400 - 645,000 

Note 
No. 6 Inventories  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars  Standalone  Dubai Consolidated  Standalone  Dubai Consolida

ted 

1 Raw Material - - 
2 Work-in-Progress 51,003,188 51,003,188 - - 
3 Finished Goods - 4,202,592 4,202,592 
4 Stock-in-Trade 48,504,827 48,504,827 - - 
5 Stores & Spares - - - 
6 Loose Tools - - - 
7 Other With Job Worker - - - 
8 Goods-in-transit - - - 

Total 99,508,015 - 99,508,015 4,202,592 - 4,202,592 

Note 
No. 7 Current Investment  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr 
No. Particulars 

 No.of 
Shares  Amount  No.of 

Shares  Amount 

1 Investment in Equity Unquoted 

a) Jackpot Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 1,220 1,220,000 1,220 1,220,000 
b) Touchwin Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 2,725 2,725,000 2,725 2,725,000 
c) Gurukripa Bio Fertilizer Pvt. Ltd. - - 700 4,000,000 
d) Touchwin Dealcom Pvt. Ltd. 1,330 1,330,000 1,330 1,330,000 
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e) Newedge Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 450 450,000 450 450,000 
2 Investment in Preference Shares; 
3 Investments in Government or trust 

securities; 

4 Investments in debentures or 
bonds; 

5 Investments in Mutual Funds; 
6 Investments in partnership firms; 
7 Other investments (specify nature). 

Total 5,725 5,725,000 6,425 9,725,000 

Note 
No. 7 Current Investment  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars 
 No.of 
Shares  Amount  No.of 

Shares  Amount 

1 Investment in Equity Unquoted 

a) Jackpot Vintrade Pvt. Ltd. 1,220 1,220,000 1,220 1,220,000 
b) Touchwin Commercial Pvt. Ltd. 2,725 2,725,000 2,725 2,725,000 
c) Gurukripa Bio Fertilizer Pvt. Ltd. - - 700 4,000,000 
d) Touchwin Dealcom Pvt. Ltd. 1,330 1,330,000 1,330 1,330,000 
e) Newedge Vinimay Pvt. Ltd. 450 450,000 450 450,000 

2 Investment in Preference Shares; 
3 Investments in Government or trust 

securities; 
4 Investments in debentures or bonds; 
5 Investments in Mutual Funds; 
6 Investments in partnership firms; 
7 Other investments (specify nature). 

Total 
 5,725,000 6,425  9,725,000 

Note No. 8 Trade Recievables  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

I Outstanding For Less Than Six Months 
(a) Unsecured, Considered Good From 

Related Parties 
b) Unsecured, Considered Good - - 
Others 799,309,315 624,026,364 



VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
CIN: L52100MH1982PLC291306 
35thAnnual Report 2017-2018 

140 

II Outstanding For More Than Six Months 

Total 
799,309,315 624,026,364 

Note No. 9 Cash & Cash Equivalent  As on 31st March 
2018 

 As on 31st March 
2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

1 Bank Balance 
 Axis Bank A/c No. 915020049574158 981,270 512,714 
 HDFC Bank Ltd A/c No. 05420340000573 5,795 5,795 
 Kotak Mahindra Bank A/c No 9412395575 13,847 155,699 
 Yes Bank A/c No. 018983900005033 567 755 
 Yes Bank Retail Banking 001060800000369 753 753 
 Axis Bank A/c No :- 917020074099299 2,852 - 
 Chasebid Kotak Bank A/c No.9412641887 111,830 - 
 HDFC Bank Ltd A/c 50200030165099 50,000 - 
 IPL Kotak Bank A/c No.9412641849 42,704 - 
 Almasraf 994,329 7,977 

 Total 2,203,949 683,694 

- 
2  Cash-in-Hand 

 Cash 149,151 139,132 
 Petty Cash 15,906 5,387 
Production Petty Cash 90 

Total 165,147 144,519 

Total (1+2) 2,369,095 828,213 

Note No. 
10 Other Current Assets As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

2 Others 
a) Balance with Revenue Authorities 12,530,912 1,420,732 
b) Short Terms Loans and Advances - 11,223,198 
c) Advance To Debtors 33,265,694 -
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d) Advances against Property Purchase 35,876,500 37,476,500 
e) Interest Recievable 3,647,095 2,892,350 
f) Other Advances 532,113 42,126,659 
g) Staff Loans - 7,500 
h). Misc Expenditures Not w/off 415,969 - 

Total 86,268,283 95,146,938 

Note 
No. 11 Share Capital  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  No of Shares  Amount  No of Shares  Amount 

1 AUTHORIZED CAPITAL 
11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each. 

110,000,000 
110,000,000 110,000,000 110,000,000 

(11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each) 

Total  110,000,000  110,000,000  110,000,000 
110,000,000 

2 ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP 
CAPITAL 
10,66,52,100 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- 
each, Fully 106,652,100 106,652,100 35,550,700 35,550,700 
Issued during the year  1,465,500 1,465,500 
(14,65,500 Equity Shares of Rs.1/-
each,Fully paid-up) 
(Being Bonus shared issued during 
the year at 2 for 1) - - 71,101,400 71,101,400 

Total 108,117,600 108,117,600 106,652,100 106,652,100 

Reconciliation Of The Number Of Share Outstanding At The Beginning And At The End Of The Year 
Note 
No. 
11A Share Capital 

 As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Equity Shares 
 No.of Shares  Amount 

 No.of Shares  Amount 

1 At the beginning Current Investments 106,652,100 106,652,100 3,555,070 30,550,700 
Subdivided Equity Shares of Rs.1/- 
each (Rs.10 each) 106,652,100 106,652,100 35,550,700 35,550,700 

2 Add: Issued during the period 1,465,500 1,465,500 
Add: Bonus Shares Issued during the 
period 71,101,400 71,101,400 
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Outstanding at the end of the year 108,117,600 108,117,600 106,652,100 106,652,100 

Note 
No. 
11B Share Capital 

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions Attached to Shares 

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1/- per 
share. 
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends 
in  
Indian Rupees. The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year. 

As per the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the 
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in the event of liquidation of the Company. 
However 
no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be in proprtion to the number of 
equity  
shares held by the shareholders. 

During the year the Company has issued 1465500 Equity Shares of Rs.1 each fully at  a premium of Rs.28/- 
each fully paid. 

(During  the previous year the Company has issued the Bonus Shares in the ratio 2:1 (Two Equity shares 
of Rs.1/- each fully paid for every one equity share held) The Company Company has also subdivided 
its equity of Rs.10/- each into Rs.1 each fully paid shares. All these shares rank paripassu.) 

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares of the 
Company 
Note 
No. 
11C Share Capital  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Name of Shareholder  No.of Shares 
 % of 

Holding  No.of Shares  % of Holding 

1 Ripusudan Kundra 2,75,43,900 25.48 27,468,900 25.76 
2 Shilpa Shetty Kundra 2,74,93,900 25.43 27,468,900 25.76 

As per the record of the Company, including it's register of 
members 
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Note No. 
12 Reserves and Surplus  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

1 Share Premium Account 
Opening Balance 23,898,600 95,000,000 
(+) Current Year Transfer 41,034,000 - 
(-) Written Back in Current Period - - 
(-) Bonus Issued in Current Period - 71,101,400 
Closing Balance 64,932,600 23,898,600 

2 Surplus (Profit & Loss Account) 384,292,583 105,612,025 
Balance Brought Forward from Previous 
Year 105,683,377 (1,362,974) 
Add: Profit For The Period 278,336,994 107,046,351 
Less : Goodwill/Capital Reserve on 
Consolidation 337,310 (71,352) 

- - 
Total 449,225,183 129,510,625 

Note No. 
13 Non-Current Liabilities  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

1 Bonds / Debentures 42,499,500 - 
(Refer Note 9 to Notes to Account) 

2 Other Loans & Advances - 

Total  42,499,500 - 

Note No. 
14 Short Term Borrowings  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

Loan Repayable on Demand - 
- From Bank -
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- From Other Parties - 
Loans & Advances From Related Parties - 
Shilpa Shetty Kundra 13,750,000 

Total - 13,750,000 

Note No. 
15 Trades Payable  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

Others 386,522,549 476,143,718 
Due To MSME - 

Total 386,522,549 476,143,718 

Note No. 
16 Other Current Liabilities As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

Other Current Liabilities 3,986,030 13,489,023 

Total 3,986,030 13,489,023 

Note No. 
17 Short Term Provisions  As on 31st March 2018  As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars  Consolidated  Consolidated 

Provision for Employee Benefit 3,276,570 379,068 
Others Provisions 9,168,625 1,614,420 

Total 12,445,195 1,993,488 

Note No. 
18 Revenue from Operations As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1  Sales Goods 2,364,491,876 1,333,453,612 
Less: Goods Return - - 

2  Sales of Services 307,882,796 10,200,000 
3 Export Sales 13,165,528 -
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a) Marketing Income ( Abroad) - 3,253,800 
- 

Total 2685540200 1346907412 

Note No. 
19 Other Income As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Other Receipts: 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation A/c - 1,474,567 
Freight on Sales - - 
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 1,816 
Interest Received on Loan 1,564,745 3,242,000 
Misc Income 7,823,333 22,964 
Round Off 444 179 
Sundry Creditors Balance Write Back 486 5,627,199 
Testing Charges 1,950 
Service Chgs on BN Distributors Comm. 18,122 

- 
- 
- 

 Total 9409080.08 10368724.99 

Note No. 
20 Cost of Material Consumed As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1) 
PURCHASES OF RAW MATERIALS 
AND STORES 
Purchases  Goods 2,149,434,832 1,147,703,667 
Loss on Trading of Goods - 25,460,307 
Less: Goods Return - (188,102) 
Purchase Import - 4,219,000 
Purchase Delhi - 8,407,492 
Less: Goods Return - - 
Cost of Services 82,733,024 

- 
2232167856 1185602364 

2) DIRECT/PRODUCTIONS EXPENSES 
 Custom Duty 19,500 109,587 
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Freight on Purchase 473,435 513,423 
Labour Charges 500 923,351 
Distributor Commission 1,240,521 

1,733,956 1,546,361 

 Total (1+2) 2233901812 1187148725 

Note No. 
21 Change in Inventories As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

 1 Opening Stock 4,202,592 - 
2 Closing Stock 99,508,015 4,202,592 

 Total -95305422.62 -4202592.38

Note No. 
22 Employement Benefit Expenses As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Salaries And Wages 23,198,512 26,258,053 
2 Employers ESIC Contribution 158,969 50,837 
3 Insurance - 86,859 
4 PF Employers Contribution 384,207 253,076 
5 PF Insurance Scheme 5,448 14,769 
6 Director Remuneration 8,100,000 3,016,301 
7 Staff Group Insurance - - 
8 Staff Welfare 390,350 344,508 
9 Maharashtra Labour Welfare 3,936 
10 Bonus Expense 3,361,857 
11 Gratuity expense 669,490 

Total 36,272,769 30,024,403 

Note No. 
23 Finance Cost As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Interest Paid on Unsecured Loan - 500,712 

 Total - 500712 
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Note No. 
24 Depreciation & Amortised Cost As on 31st March 2018 As on 31st March 2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Depreciation 3,465,955 2,705,237 
2 Roc Filling Fee W/off 46,220 81,561 
3 Preliminary Exp W/off - 414,837 

Total 3512175 3201635.712 

Note No. 
25 Other Administrative Expenses For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2018 
For The Year Ended on 

31/03/2017 

Sr No. Particulars Consolidated Consolidated 

1 Payment to Auditors 
Auditors Remuneration 607,552 290,577 
Other Services 460,000 68,200 

Total (1) 1,067,552 358,777 

2 Listing & Depositary Expenses 
Annual Fees 126,500 27,480 
E-Voting Charges 3,000 - 
Listing Fees 610,000 229,000 
Processing Fees 22,650 148,958 

Total (2) 762,150 405,438 

3 Other Administrative Expenses 

Professional & Legal fees 32,480,898 4,951,110 
Marketing & Business Promotion 156,728,599 5,338,462 
Rent Rates & Taxes 5,517,096 107,450 
Telecommunication Expense 14,539,094 490,258 
Administrative Cost & Indirect Charges 14,005,095 1,726,643 
Other Expenditures 2,274,113 
Sundry Balance W/off 7,350,056 
Interest Expenses - 34,379 
Shooting Exp - 281,731 
Octroi & Fright Charges - 1,328,278 
Finance Charges - 1,658,875 
Brokerage & Commission - 1,298,715 
Testing Charges - 1,644,888 
Travelling Expenses - 2,182,004 
Donation - 625,000 
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Office Expenses - 1,351,545 
Board Exp - 333,100 
Warehousing Charges - 867,000 
Warranty Maintenance Charges - 681,644 
Website & Software Expenses - 783,485 
Electricity Charges - 592,240 
Administrative Exp - 2,974,508 
Conveyance & Petrol Exp - 698,597 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 321,011 
Membership & Subscription Fees - 113,151 
App Registration Fees - 11,501 

Total (3) 232,894,952 12,613,923 

Total (1+2+3) 234,724,654 33,187,739 
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2. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.1 Segment Reporting 

The Company has identified Business segment as the primary segment.  
Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to segments are categorized based on 
items that are individually identifiable to that segment 

Sr No Particulars Figures at the 
end of 31st 

March, 2018 

Figures at the end 
of 31st March, 2018 

STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 
I. 

II. 

III. 

IV. 

V. 

VI. 

VII. 

VIII. 

IX. 

X. 

XI. 

XII. 

Segment Value of Sales & Services 
(Revenue): 

1.Trading Activity 
2.Entertainment, Media  & Technology 
3.Unallocated 
Less: Inter-Segemnt Transfers 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (I - II) 

Expenses: 

1.Trading Activity 
2.Entertainment & Technology 
3.Unallocated 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

SEGEMNT RESULTS: 

1.Trading Activity 
2.Entertainment & Technology 
3.Unallocated 

Total Segment Profit Before Interest & Tax 

Exceptional Items 

Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax 
(VII - VIII) 

Extra-Ordinary Items 

Profit Before Tax 

71,98,12,220 
28,79,85,564 
 3,60,69,814 

Nil 

1,04,38,67,598 

71,51,71,837 
24,96,71,567 
 6,18,09,886 

1,02,66,53,291 

18,01,773 
1,70,68,051 
(60,18,263) 

1,28,51,561 

NIL 

1,28,51,561 

NIL 

1,28,51,561 

3,047 

2,57,38,71,843 
 12,18,49,938 

 14,33,466 
Nil 

2,69,71,55,247 

1,13,96,15,679 
 11,26,23,256 

 74,21,673 

1,25,96,60,608 

14,95,36,340 
 92,26,682 

 (59,63,101) 

15,27,99,921 

NIL 

15,27,99,921 

NIL 

15,27,99,921 

3,047 
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XIII. 
Less: Interest 

Profit Before Tax after Interest 
1,28,48,514 15,27,96,874 

2.2 Subsidiary to Consolidation 

Name of Subsidiary Country of 
incorporation 

Proportion of 
Ownership 

Interest 
(Current year) 

Proportion of 
Ownership Interest 

(Previous year) 

Viaan Industries DMCC Dubai 100 100 

2.3 Operating Leases 

The Group has entered into cancellable operating lease agreements as lessee for various premises. 
The cancellable lease agreements are normally renewed on expiry. The lease rentals recognised as 
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year is as follows: 

(in Rs) 
Particulars As on        

31 March 2018 
As on  31 

March 2017 

Not later than one year 6,00,000/- 17,70,868/- 

Later than one year but not later than five - - 

More than five years - - 

2.4 Deferred tax (liabilities)/Assets 
(in Rs) 

Particulars As on 
31 March 2018 

As on 
31 March 2017 

Deferred Tax Asset 60,947/- - 
Deferred Tax Liability - 11,164/- 
Previous Year Carry Forward 58,940/- 70,104/- 

Closing Balance DTA 119,887/- 58,940/- 

2.5 Earnings per Share 

Calculation of earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-20) issued 
by the ICAI. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the 
period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period.       
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 (in Rs) 

Particulars As on  
31 March 2018 

As on  
31 March 2017 

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax but before 
appropriation 

27,83,36,994/- 10,70,46,351/- 

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 10,72,06,179 10,66,52,100 

Face Value Per Share 1.00 1.00 

Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share 2.60 1.00 

2.6 Related party transactions 

i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

 Name of the Party Relation 

12. Nandanadan Mishra Independent Director 

13. Pradeep Shah Independent Director (Upto June 2017) 

14. Mahinder Kumar Wadhwa Independent Director 

15. Ripu Sudan Kundra Director & CEO 

16. Darshit Shah Director & CFO 

17. Shilpa Shetty Kundra Director 

18. Essential Bulk Commodities Pvt Ltd Common Director 

19. Satyug Gold Pvt.Ltd. Common Director 

20. Cinemation Media works Private
Limited

Common Director 

21. Satyendra Mohanlal Sarupria Director 

22. Kiran  Jadhav Company Secretary 
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ii) Transactions with Related Parties:

Name of the Party Transactions Amount 

12. Nandanandan Mishra Board Sitting Fees  Rs.  150,000/- 

13. Pradeep Shah Board Sitting Fees  Rs.   30,000/- 

14. Mahinder Wadhwa Board Sitting Fees  Rs. 150,000/- 

15. Satyendra Mohanlal 
Sarupria

Board Sitting fees  Rs.       50,000/- 

16. Ripu Sudan Kundra Remuneration 

Reimbursement 

Loan Received during the year 

Loan Repaid during the year 

Advance for Expenses 

Interest Paid 

 Rs. 60,00,000/- 

 Rs. 30,03,315/- 

 Rs. 20,00,000/- 

 Rs. 20,00,000/- 

 Rs.   4,72,307/- 

 Rs.     10,762/- 

17. Darshit Shah
Remuneration  

Reimbursement 

 Rs. 21,00,000/- 

 Rs. 18,37,900/- 

18. Shilpa Shetty Kundra Loan Received during the year 

Loan Repaid during the year 

Interest paid  

Reimbursement 

 Rs.   6,00,000/- 

 Rs.1,43,50,000/- 

 Rs.     1,83,634/- 

 Rs.  38,89,677/-  

2.7 Foreign Transaction Details of Holding Company 

Earnings in Foreign Currency – Rs. 1,31,65,228/- 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency- Rs. 78,14,140/- 

2.8 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006(MSMED Act) 
are provided as under for the year to the extent the group has received intimation from the 
suppliers regarding the status under the Act. 
The group has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status under Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure, if any, required 
under the said Act have not been made. 
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 2.9  In the opinion of the Board and to the best of their knowledge and belief, all current assets, loans 
and advances have a value, on realization, in the ordinary course of business equal to the amount 
at which these are stated, all known liabilities are provided for, at their full values unless 
otherwise stated, and potential liabilities are recognized to the extent they are deemed likely to 
crystallize. 

As per our separate report of even date attached 

For Sekhri Kanodia & Associates         For Viaan Industries Limited 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

CA SANJEEV KUMAR CHOPRA   Ripu Sudan Kundra  Darshit Shah 

Partner          Managing Director      Executive Director/CFO 

M No. 131611         DIN 01785303          DIN 06614591 

Date: 23-05-2018 
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(Annexure I) 

Dear Shareholder(s), 

This is to inform you that the company is in process of updation of records of the shareholders in order to 
reduce the physical documentation as far as possible. 

With new BSE listing agreement, it is mandatory for all the investors including transferors to complete 
their KYC information. Hence, we have to update your PAN No., phone no. and e-mail id in our records. 
We would also like to update your current signature records in our system. 

To achieve this we solicit your co-operation in providing the following details to us : 

1. If you are holding the shares in dematerialized form you may update all your records with your
Depository Participant (DP).

2. If you are holding shares in physical form, you may provide the following :

Folio No. : 

Pan No.  : 

E-mail ID : 

Telephone No. : 

Name and Signatures :   i. 

ii. 

iii.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. 

Name and Address of 

the Member 

Registered 

Folio No. 

Client ID & 

DP ID No. 

Number of 

Shares held 

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Tuesday 25th September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at Sri Guru Nanak Sachkhand Darbar, Dharam Sheel 
Community Hall, Block No.5/6, Room No.1, Mulund Colony, Opp. Youth Circle, Mulund (West), 
Mumbai - 400082. 

Signature of the Member or the Proxy Attending the Meeting 

If Member, please sign here If Proxy, please sign here 

Note: members are requested to bring their copies of Notice to the meeting as the same will not be 

circulated at the meeting. 

ROUTE MAP OF AGM DIRECTION FROM MULUND STATION TO VENUE. 
Sri Guru Nanak Sachkhand Darbar, DharamSheel Community Hall, 
Block No.5/6, Room No.1, Mulund Colony, 
Opp. Youth Circle, Mulund (West), 
Mumbai – 400082. 
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 PROXY FORM 
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014)  
Name of the Company: Viaan Industries Limited  
Regd. Office: B-804, 8th Floor, Hubtown solaris, N.S Phadke Road, Andheri (east), Mumbai 400 099. 
Name of the Member(s) : 

Registered Address : 

E mail Id : 

Folio No / Client ID: 

DP ID : 

I / We, being the member(s) of _____________ shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:  
(1)Name……………………………......... Address…………………………………….... 
Email ID ……………………….............. Signature……………………....................... or failing him/her  
(2)Name……………………………..........Address…………………………………….... 
Email ID ……………………….............. Signature……………………....................... or failing him/her  
(3)Name……………………………..........Address…………………………………….... 
 Email ID……………………….............. Signature……………………....................... 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Tuesday 25th September, 2018 at 11.00 a.m. at Sri Guru Nanak Sachkhand Darbar, 
Dharam Sheel Community Hall, Block No.5/6, Room No.1, Mulund Colony, Opp. Youth Circle, Mulund (West), 
Mumbai – 400082 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Resolution 
No. 

Items For 
(Assent) 

Against 
(Dissent) 

Ordinary Resolution 
1 To adopt the Audited Balance sheet & Profit & Loss for the FY 2017-2018.. 

2. To declare a dividend on equity shares for the financial year ended March 
31, 2018 

3 To appoint a Director in place of Shilpa Shetty Kundra (DIN 02130254), who 
retires by rotation. 

4 Ratification of appointment of M/s. Sekhari Kanodia & Associates, Charter 
Accountant as Statutory Auditor of the Company. 

Special Resolution 

5 Ratification of Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential Basis: 

Signed this ______________ day of __________ 2018. 

Signature of the Shareholder ………………… 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) ………………… 
Notes: This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
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Polling Paper 
Ballot Form 

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of Company: VIAAN INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Registered Office: B-804, 8th Floor, Hubtown solaris, N.S Phadke Road, Andheri (east), Mumbai 400 099. 

Ballot Form 
1 Name of the First Named Shareholder 

(In block letters) 
: 

2 Name of the Joint Holder(s) if any : 

3 Registered address of the sole/first named Shareholder : 

4 Registered Folio No./ DP No./ Client ID No.  : 

5 Class of shares & No. of shares held : 

I/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of Resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to 
the said resolutions in the following manner:: 

Item 
No. 

Items No. of shares I/We assent 
to the 

Resolution 

I/We dissent 
to the 

Resolution 
Ordinary Resolution 

1. To adopt the Audited Balance sheet & Profit & Loss for 
the FY 2017-18. 

2. To declare a dividend on equity shares for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2018 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shilpa Shetty Kundra 
(DIN 02130254)who retires by rotation. 

4. Ratification of appointment of M/s. Sekhari Kanodia & 
Associates, Charter Accountant as Statutory Auditor of 
the Company. 

Special Resolution 

5. Ratification of Issue of Equity Shares on Preferential 
Basis: 

Place: 
Date:  

Signature of the Shareholder 
Note: 

1. Please read carefully the instructions overleaf before exercising your vote.
2. If you opt to cast your vote by remote e-voting, there is no need to fill up and sign this form.
3. Please note that the last date for receipt of Postal Ballot Forms by the Scrutinizer is 24th September, 2018 at 5.00 P.M.
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INSTRUCTIONS 
1. General Instructions:
a. There will be one Ballot Form/remote e-voting for every Client ID No./Folio No., irrespective of the number of

joint holders.
b. Members have option to vote either through Ballot Form or through remote e-voting. If a member has opted

for Physical Ballot, then he/she should not vote by remote e-voting and vice versa. However, in case
Shareholders cast their vote through both physical postal ballot and remote e-voting, then vote cast through
remote e-voting shall prevail and vote cast through Physical Postal Ballot shall be considered as invalid.

c. Voting in the ballot/e-voting cannot be exercised by a proxy. However, corporate and institutional members
shall be entitled to vote through their authorised representatives with proof of their authorization, as stated
below.

d. The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of a Ballot/remote e-voting shall be final and binding.
2. Instructions for voting physically by Postal Ballot Form:
a. A member desirous of exercising his/her Vote by Ballot may complete this Ballot Form and send it to the

Scrutinizer, Mr. S.K.Pandey, a Practicing Company Secretary, at 13,1ST FLOOR, NEW BANSILAL
BUILDING, RAJA BAHADUR MANSION, 9-15, HOMI MODI STREET, FORT, MUMBAI-400 023, in the
attached self addressed envelope. Postage will be borne and paid by the Company.  Further, any envelopes
containing postal ballot, if deposited in person or sent by courier at the expense of the Registered Member(s)
will also be accepted.

b. The self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope bears the address of the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

c. This Form must be completed and signed by the Member, as per specimen signature registered with the
Company or Depository Participant, as the case may be. In case of joint holding, this Form must be completed
and signed (as per the specimen signature registered with the Company) by the first named Member and in
his/her absence, by the next named Member.

d. In respect of shares held by corporate and institutional members (companies, trusts, societies, etc.), the
completed Postal Ballot Form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the relevant Board
Resolution/appropriate authorization, with the specimen signature(s) of the authorized signatory(ies) duly
attested.

e. The consent must be accorded by recording the assent in the column ‘FOR’ or dissent in the column
‘AGAINST’ by placing a tick mark () in the appropriate column in the Ballot Form. The assent or dissent
received in any other form shall not be considered valid.

f. Members are requested to fill the Ballot Form in indelible ink and avoid filling it by using erasable writing
medium(s) like pencil.

g. Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the close of working hours by 5.00
p.m. on Wednesday, 24th September, 2018. All Ballot Forms received after this date will be strictly treated as
if no reply has been received from the Member.

h. A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required, and the same duly completed should reach
the Scrutinizer not later than the date specified under instruction No.2 (g) above.

i. Members are requested not to send any other paper along with the Ballot Form. They are also requested not
to write anything in the Ballot Form except giving their assent or dissent and putting their signature. If any
such other paper is sent, the same will be destroyed by the Scrutinizer.

j. Incomplete, unsigned or incorrectly ticked Postal Ballot Forms will be rejected.
k. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e voting

period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witness not in the employment of the Company
and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman. The
Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website within two (2)
days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the Company and shall be communicated to the Stock
Exchange, where its securities are listed.

3. Process for Members opting for Remote E-Voting:
l. In case of members receiving the Ballot Form by Post:

User ID and initial password is provided at the bottom of the Ballot Form.
m. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use existing user ID and password

for Login to cast your vote.
n. In case of any queries, remote e-voting user manual for shareholders available at the Downloads section on

NSDL remote e-voting website: www.evoting.nsdl.com can also send your queries/ grievances relating to
remote e-voting to the e-mail ID:-evoting@nsdl.co.in.

o. The period for remote e-voting starts on Saturday, 22th September, 2018 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Monday,
24th September, 2018 at 5.00 p.m.
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